NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING

Notice is given that a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Barton Springs/Edwards
Aquifer Conservation District will be held at the District office, located at 1124 Regal Row,
Austin, Texas, on Thursday, December 15, 2016, commencing at 6:00 p.m. for the following
purposes, which may be taken in any order at the discretion of the Board.

Note: The Board of Directors of the Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District
reserves the right to meet in Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to
discuss any of the matters listed on this agenda, as authorized by the Texas Government Code
Sections §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property),
551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076
{Deliberations about Security Devices), 551.087 (Economic Development), 418.183 (Homeland
Security). No final action or decision will be made in Executive Session.

1. Call to Order.

2. Citizen Communications (Public Comments of a General Nature).

3. Routine Business.

a. Consent Agenda. (Note: These items may be considered and approved as one motion, Directors
or citizens may request any consent item be removed from the consent agenda, for consideration and
possible approval as a separate item of Regular Business on this agenda,)

1. Approval of Financial Reports under the Public Funds Investment Act, Directors’
Compensation Claims, and Specified Expenditures greater than $5,000. Not for
public review

2. Approval of minutes of the Board’s November 17, 2016 regular Meeting. Not for
public review at this time

3. Approval of the effectiveness of Directors’ communications with stakeholders
and constituents for the 1% Quarter FY 2016 per the collective judgment of the
Board, as required by the District’s Management Plan. Pg. 27

b. General Manager’s Report. (Note: Topics discussed in the General Manager's Report are
intended for general administrative and operational information-transfer purposes. The Directors will
not take any action unless the topic is specifically listed elsewhere in this agenda.)

1. Standing Topics.

i.  Personnel matters and utilization
ii.  Upcoming public events of possible interest
iii.  Aquifer conditions and status of drought indicators

2. Special Topics. (Note: Individual topics listed below may be discussed by the Board in this
meeting, but no action will be taken unless a topic is specifically posted elsewhere in this agenda
as an item for possible action. A Director may request an individual topic that is presented only






under this agenda item be placed on the posted agenda of some future meeting for Board
discussion and possible action.)

i.  Review of Status Update Report — at directors’ discretion Pg. 31

ii.  Update on GMA and regional water planning

ili.  Update on regulatory and enforcement activities

iv.  Update on District grant projects and other Aquifer Science Team projects
v.  Update on activities related to area roadway projects

vi.  Update on the HCP/ITP application and the associated draft EIS

Presentations

Presentation by the District’s financial auditor on the FY 2016 Annual Financial Audit Report,

Discussion and Possible Action.

a.

Discussion and possible action related to receipt and approval of the FY 2016 Annual
Financial Audit report provided by the District’s financial auditor. Pg. 45

Discussion and possible action related to approving the District’s FY 2016 Annual Report
and submitting it to the TCEQ. Pg. 71

Discussion and possible action related to adoption of Desired Future Conditions
(DFCs) for Groundwater Management Area (GMA) 9. Pg. 97

Discussion and possible action related to approval of an access agreement with the
Hays County Emergency Services District No. 4) (dba Wimberley Volunteer Fire
Department) to install and collect data from a multiport monitor well on their
property. NBU

Discussion and possible action related to consideration of a District legislative agenda
for the upcoming 85" Legislative session. Pg. 105

Discussion and possible action related to the City of Dripping Springs TPDES permit
application to authorize direct discharge of treated wastewater to Onion Creek in the
contributing zone of the Barton Springs segment of the Edwards Aquifer. NBU

Discussion and possible action related to the annual election of the officers of the
BSEACD Board of Directors. NBU

Directors’ Reports. (Note: Directors’ comments under this item cannot address an agenda item
posted elsewhere on this agenda and no substantive discussion among the Board Members or action will be
allowed in this meeting. Communications reported under this item may be used to support Performance
Standard 4-1 of the District's Management Plan related to demonstration of effective communication with
District constituents.}






Directors may report on their involvement in activities and dialogue that are of likely
interest to the Board, in one or more of the following topical areas:

e Meetings and conferences attended or that will be attended,
¢ Committee formation and updates;
e Conversations with public officials, permittees, stakeholders, and other constituents;
s Commendations; and
e [ssues or problems of concern.
7. Adjournment.
Came to hand and posted on a Bulletin Board in the Courthouse, Travis County, Texas, on this, the
day of December, 2016, at .m.
, Deputy Clerk
Travis County, TEXAS

Please note: This agenda and available related documentation have been posted on our website, www.bseacd.org.
If you have a special interest in a particular item on this agenda and would like any additional documentation that
may be developed for Board consideration, please let staff know at ieast 24 hours in advance of the Board Meeting
so that we can have those copies made for you.

The Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District is committed to compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA). Reasonable accommodations and equal opportunity for effective communications will be
provided upon request. Please contact the District office at 512-282-8441 at least 24 hours in advance if
accommodation is needed.






Item 1

Call to Order






Item 2

Citizen Communications






Item 3

Routine Business

a. Consent Agenda

(Note: These items may be considered and approved as one motion, Directors or citizens may request
any consent item be removed from the consent agenda, for consideration and possible approval as a
separate item of Regular Business on this agenda.)

1. Approval of Financial Reports under the Public Funds
Investment Act, Directors’ Compensation Claims, and
Specified Expenditures greater than $5,000.

2. Approval of minutes of the Board’s November 17, 2016
Regular Meeting.

3. Approval of the effectiveness of Directors’
communications with stakeholders and constituents for
the 1° Quarter FY 2016 per the collective judgment of the
Board, as required by the District’s Management Plan.






S1012231(] O} AQ popiaold BOIIBIUDWINDOP IO ALY e
Jouenb snoitaaid 10j suuoj uonesuadwo]) Jowang jo sado) e
Sunoow S|y Jo SANUEA e

‘Auipnjoul payoene uoneiudwndop sutuoddng

_— = :AQ puoddy
— G S i L e e AQ UONON

ESEE - S uaidpng 0an2|j0

e I%b% .w.w..w .....
) |-.-I@ \ _Qm E _Nﬂlli . :funao Jo omgg

"SuonOR [EIpawas popoou Aue Suidjnuapl Joj pue Fupjew
-UOIS10pP 1o1ISI(] H0) SIStq 9A1I9A1JS ur Supiaosd ae s|eidi]jo algnd 1910 pue SEdMnSeod Juipnput "AJuUnuod JapjooNes
S} puUE I9LOSICE DY) U2DMIDG SUONBIIUNWILIOD JOYIRLA O] ST Jouenb 1oed doue paeog] oy jo juowdpnl 2anmojjo) IO

Jo Jouend) Juipandl Suissassy

satarjod pue sweadoad s ymunsig s £q pajoayie aae
pue 199336 Juy) sod4) [j Jo SIIPOYIHEIS YPIM APUIIN0L PUB A[PAIDIED NENUNWWOD PUT NRANIND [~ PIBPUL]Y IDUBUWIOJID]

*S221N0SL PAJBIAL puk Jumpunoad o) 3padsaa
ypa Smuuepd Jwol pup ONRUIPI0D ‘RONEIOYE][03 ‘UOPEIUNWWOD [Rut)xa ul diysiopua pensuowd(| p 2aniqO +2°11

(ue] wowadeury 19LSIC] At Ag pasinbal sr)

SUOIEIIUNWWO)) 10323A1(] IA1)29JJH JO Judwspnp pavog Apidjaen)

27



28



Item 3

Routine Business

b. General Manager’s Report.

Note: Topics discussed in the General Manager’s Report are intended for administrative and
operational information-transfer purposes. The Directors will not deliberate any issues arising
from such discussions and no decisions on them will be taken in this meeting, unless the topic
is specifically listed elsewhere in this as-posted agenda.

1. Standing Topics.

i. Personnel matters and utilization
ii. Upcoming public events of possible interest
iii. Adquifer conditions and status of drought indicators

2. Special Topics.

Note: Individual topics listed below may be discussed by the Board in this meeting, but no
action will be taken unless a topic is specifically posted elsewhere in this agenda as an item for
possible action. A Director may request an individual topic that is presented only under this
agenda item be placed on the posted agenda of some future meeting for Board discussion and
possible action.

i. Review of Status Update Report — at directors’
discretion

ii. Update on GMA and regional water planning

iii. Update on regulatory and enforcement activities

iv. Update on District grant projects and other Aquifer

Science Team projects
v. Update on activities related to area roadway projects
vi. Update on the HCP/ATP application and the

associated draft EIS
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Item 4

Presentations

Presentation by the District’s financial auditor on the FY 2016
Annual Financial Audit Report.
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{tem 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

a. Discussion and possible action related to receipt and approval
of the FY 2016 Annual Financial Audit report provided by the
District’s financial auditor.
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Board of Directors
Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conscrvative
District (District) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; thisincludes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain recasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements arc {ree from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

a7



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the District as of August 31, 2016, and the changes in financial position and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s

discussion and analysis on pages{f through'8 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiring of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquirics, the basic {inancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information becausc the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient cvidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

DATE
Auslin, Texas
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Barton Springs / Edwards Aquifer Conservation District

Management Discussion and Analysis
DRAFT

Fiscal Year Ending August 31, 2016

The following Management Discussion and Analysis narrative provides an overview and
summary-level analysis of the significant activities and situations that have financial reporting
consequence for the fiscal year. This information is provided in conjunction with our financial
statements that follow. The percentages shown in the Management Discussion & Analysis
narrative are based on the comparisons of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position before any adjusting journal entries in the current year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Since the activities of the District are financed primarily by fees charged to external parties, such
activities are reported as an enterprise fund and are considered a “business-type activity.” The
financial statements required for an enterprise fund are the Statement of Net Position; the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents the District’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position, as of the end of the fiscal year. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position are one indicator of whether the financial position of the District is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information showing
the operating revenues and expenses of the District for the fiscal year, using the accrual basis of
accounting. Therefore, revenucs are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when
incurred, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the cash receipts and cash payments of
the District during the fiscal year, summarized by operating, capital and related financing, and
investing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table presents comparative condensed financial information on assets, liabilities and
net position.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

The following table presents comparative condensed financial information on revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF CHANGES IN OPERATING REVENUES

The discussion that follows is based on FY 2016 preliminary financial reports before adjustments
and reclassifications in the audit process.

Permittees’ Production Fees and Annual Permit fees, Transport (export) fees, and City of Austin
Water Use fees, together increased by $147,659 in FY 2016 from the prior year to $1,813,421
from $1,383,960 (a 31.0% increase). This substantial increase is attributed to the City of Austin
Water Use Fee that was assessed in the amount of $1,000,000. The fee was calculated based on
an extensive analysis of the projected permitted pumping indicating a substantial increase in permit
fees for FY 2016. The City of Austin fee was calculated in accordance with the prescribed
statutory formula to be greater than this amount but was reduced to the statutory cap of $1,000,000
established with H.B. 3405 in FY 2015. The City of Austin Water Use Fee for the prior year (FY
2015) was §725,004 (37.9% less), and for the current year, FY 2017, is assessed at $850,846.

Included in the Permittees’ Production Fees budgeted amount of $602,800 is a production fee of
$124,200 and a corresponding annual permit fee for $50 and $62,125 in associated late fees
(described below) that were designated as a bad debt expense for a permittee that never fulfilled
the conditions of the permit and then allowed the permit to expire. Once the permit expired, the
collection of the unpaid fees was no longer pursued.

Included in these projected revenues are transport permit fees. There continue to be two District
transport permits that generate $124,000 in transport fees revenue in both FY 2016 and FY 2015.

Although budgeted for $240,000 income and $410,000 in grant expenses for the TWDB Regional
Facilities Grant, there was no revenue associated with Grants in FY 2016 (but there was $135,921
in expenses in FY 2016, most which were in August when the project well was being drilled).
This is due to the project being delayed such that all of income and the majority of the expenses
associated with this project will be realized in FY 2017. This will be depicted in a future FY 2017
budget revision.

All “Other Fees” includes revenue derived from variable sources such as well development fees,
well application and inspection fees, well pluggings, meter reading and late fees, and drought
management fees (fees applicable only during a District-declared drought). Revenue from Other
Fees was initially projected and budgeted to be $14,350 and then was increased in Budget Revision
2 to 816,250 to show the additional annual permit fee income from the 18 new Shared Territory
Temporary Production Permits (that have since been converted to Regular Production Permits).
Of that actual FY 2016 Other Fees revenue being shown in profit and loss statements ($80,075),
$62,125 is a bad debt expense (described above) that was charged to late fees.

Drought management fees are assessed for permittee noncompliance only during a District-
declared drought of three months or longer. The District was in “No Drought” status for the entire
FY 2016, therefore, there were no drought management fees assessed or collected.

There was no fee income from Enforcement Fines and Penalties in FY 2016 or FY 2015.
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Interest income in FY 2016 as expected continues to be minimal but is a substantial increase
(512%) from the prior year. Actual interest income received for FY 2016 is $3,638 as compared
to $594 in FY 2015.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF CHANGES IN OPERATING EXPENSES

The discussion that follows is based on FY 2016 preliminary financial reports before final anditor
adjustments and reclassifications in the audit process, although several of the year-end adjustments
have already been posted.

Expenses for personnel salaries and wages for FY 2016 is $802,078 which is $81,166 more than
the previous year’s expense. The higher salaries in FY 2016 were a result of planned staffing and
salary adjustments that includes a new regulatory compliance technician position. Also included
is two fiscal years’ worth of annual performance-based incentive bonuses, due to a change in the
timing of these projects and the way that they are booked. Future books will only consist of one
year’s worth of incentive bonuses.

Actual expenses for employee payrol! taxes and retirement benefits for FY 2016 are $119,048
which is more than the previous year’s expense of $108,763. This slight increase of $10,285 is
directly attributed to salary increases and incentive bonuses.

Actual expenses for employee group insurance benefits in FY 2016 is $98,743 which is less than
the FY 2015 expense of $107,986. This line item usually increases annually but there was a change
in the health insurance carrier to one that is less expensive (but also with lesser benefits). Also,
the vision insurance carrier was added to replace the self-insurance program for vision that used
to be in place but became illegal with a change in the law last year. The annual vision premium is
less than the annual self-insurance amounts.

Actual expense for directors’ compensation for meetings in FY 2016 is $39,850 which is barely
less than the FY 2015 actual expenses of $39,515 (a 0.9% decrease). This account was almost
maximized for the past two years. In this category, the statutory maximum annual amount, which
was not increased, of $9,000 per director per fiscal year, is always budged at the full amount of
$45,000 for the five directors.

Direct expenses associated with the ongoing work of the various programmatic teams {Aquifer
Science, Education and Qutreach, and Regulatory Compliance) are not meaningfully comparable
on a year-on-year basis, because the work programs of each vary and also cross over fiscal years.
These teams’ efforts were judged by the Board to have made sufficient progress towards achieving
the District’s 2016 Management Plan objectives (Appendix B of the draft Annual Report) and
within their budget and schedule constraints, which are the more important management measures.

Since the District holds elections no more often than every two years {in odd-numbered fiscal
years, if and when election contests warrant), the Elections account typically shows large
percentage differences from year to year. Similarly, expenses for legislative services tend to be
biennial with the Texas Legislative Regular Sessions in odd-numbered fiscal years. So year-on-
year expense can vary as much as 100%.
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The majority of election expenses are incurred in the odd-numbered fiscal years building up to
November elections in even-numbered calendar years. In FY 2013, election expenses totaled
$26,492. Similar to FY 2013, the majority of the 2014 election expenses were incurred in FY
2015. The total election expenses incurred in FY 2015 were $15,277 which was $14,481 more
than the previous election fiscal year’s expense in FY 2014 of $796. The total election expenses
incurred in FY 2016 were $1,088.

In FY 20135, there were expenses related to legislative lobbying in the amount of $40,000, which
was 100% of the budgeted amount. In FY 2014, there were $0 legislative-related expenses, as the
Legislature was not in session that year. The District has now changed the timing of when
legislative support services are needed from a biennial expense to an ongoing expense according
to the new term of agreement dated July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018. The new agreement
establishes a flat-fee structure bifurcated between legislative session months and legislative interim
months spread across 24 months. During legislative months (November of even-numbered years
through June of odd-numbered years), the fee will be $4,000 per month. During legislative interim
months (July of odd-numbered years through October of even-numbered years), the fee will be
$1,000 per month. So one year there will be $36,000 in legislative support expenses, and the
following year there will be $12,000 in legislative support expenses.

In FY 2016, Actual Professional Services expenses (excluding legal expense characterized below)
are $26,562 as compared to $45,053 in FY 2015. These professional services include the annual
financial audit, website and database improvements, the Standard retirement plan administration,
and election expenses. One factor allowing the decrease was the cancellation of elections which
were uncontested. Out of the $5,000 budgeted for elections, only $1,088 was expended. Also, out
of the $5,000 budgeted for the website and database account, only $383 was expended. In the near
future, the District is considering the switch to a new and improved database system.

Other professional services are team-specific and are included in team budgets as contracted
support expenses.

Legal Services expense in FY 2016 are $114,087 which is $28,066 more than the previous year’s
expense of $86,021 (a 32.6% increase). This increase is due to redistricting that was required by
the legislatively-mandated annexation of the Shared Territory ($27,083), Rules & Bylaws
revisions that came directly from this annexation ($23,417), and District review and comment on
the Dripping Springs TPDES permit application. This expense account only includes continuing
or planned legal representation and does not include more variable legislative services, which are
characterized above.

Several expense accounts or sub-accounts showing large percentage changes reflect small dollar
amounts in one or both years leading to relatively large proportional changes.

KEY FACTORS INFLUENCING CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets subject to depreciation include building, vehicles, and equipment with an original
cost that is greater than $5,000 and with a life exceeding one year. Land is not depreciated.



In FY 2016, there was one capital improvement project in Facilities Upgrades that was initiated
and completed for $5,000 to complete a minor remodel to the library. This was an interior project
to modernize and improve functionality. In Facilities Repairs, $4,200 was spent to replace a fence
that had deteriorated beyond repair.

KEY FACTORS INFLUENCING CHANGES IN CASH FUNDS

The available cash funds (two BB&T accounts and one TexPool General account, excluding the
contingency, and reserve funds) at the end of FY 2016 totaled $405,209 which is $17,048 more
than the prior year's total of $388,161. Differences in these funds are mostly attributable to the
timing of receipts of water use fee payments from permittees and the City of Austin and their
resulting deposits. For FY 2016, there was not much difference.

In FY 2015, the District transferred $160,000 from its TexPool accounts in order to fund the
installation of a Westbay monitoring well. The Westbay well was not installed until FY 2016 so
the $160,000 remained in the TexPool General account and was rebudgeted in the FY 2016 initial
annual budget to be available for anticipated project start up in FY 2016. This grant project was
started at the end of FY 2016 and funds were expended but none received as grant billings are only
to be invoiced after specific phases of the project, which had not occurred by the end of FY 2016.
The expended grant funds will be invoiced by the District and reimbursed by the TWDB in FY
2017.

As previously mentioned, although $410,000 was budgeted as expenses ($135,921 actual) and
$240,000 was budgeted for revenue, these numbers will be revised to reflect actual expenses
incurred in FY 2016 and true up anticipated expenses and grant revenue in the FY 2017 Budget
Revision that is forthcoming,

ANTICIPATED CHANGES

The following events and initiatives affecting the revenue, cost, and financial management have
not occurred yet or have not yet substantially impacted the financial performance of the District,
but are expected to occur and be potentially significant to financial performance and/or condition
in FY 2017:

» [nstallation of two multi-port monitor wells in Hays and Travis Counties respectively in
accordance with Interlocal Agreements between the District and each county. The wells will
be largely funded with cash contributions from the counties and in-kind contributions from the
District. Income and expenses associated with these projects will be reflected in a forthcoming
budget amendment.

* Pursuit of possible legislative initiatives associated with and that were carried over from H.B.
3405 requiring additional legal services for bill drafting and analysis.

» Possible receipt of compensation for easements to construct a pipeline for the Hays Caldwell
Public Utility Agency through District property.



Movement of team-budgeted contract support funds to the temporary employee/intern budget
line items to support hiring of temporary staff to support ongoing projects.

Assessment of database programs and services and possible RFQ and engagement with a firm
to support database improvements.

Additional contract support or temporary staff to support 30" anniversary planning and
activities.

Possible contested case or legal challenges associated with controversial permit applications
in the shared territory.

The possible onset of Drought conditions during FY 2017 may generate additional revenues
from the assessment of drought management fees or drought enforcement penalties; however,
such revenues are not budgeted sources of income and elevated aquifer conditions at the end
of FY 2016 make the prospect of a drought declaration in FY 2017 unlikely.

Larger amounts of contractual funding associated with various technical and professional
services, including:

o legal and technical services associated with the ongoing review of the Dripping Springs
TPDES permit application and possible participation in a contested case;

o technical and consulting services to be responsive to comments received by the U.S. Fish
and Wildlife Service and during the public review process on the District’s submitted draft
HCP and ITP application and to support completion of the draft EIS;

o technical services to support prospective special projects including: ASR pilot projects;
continued aquifer characterization; multiport well installation; and possible recharge
enhancement projects associated with Onion Creek flood mitigation measures.

o technical and consulting services to support prospective implementation of the HCP
including initial annual reporting and mitigation measures;

o engineering services associated with continued monitoring and review of major roadway
projects including SH45 SW; and

o consulting services to support revision of the District Management Plan due in early FY
2018.
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BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUND

AUGUST 31, 2016
ASSETS
Current assels
Cash $461,343
Short-term investments 1,141,022
Accounts receivable 110,339
Other 2.289
7 Gb 1,714,993
Noncurrent assets
Land 165,415
Construction in progress 127,705
Depreciable capital assets, net 160,933

454,053

52,160,046
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $35,646
Conservation credits 32,383
Accrued payroll 101,011
Deferred revenue 410.985

380.023

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assels 454,053
Unrestricted 1.134,968

bond - 1.589.021
H i SREL ALY

$2.169.046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
9
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BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2016

Proprietary Fund
OPERATING REVENUE

Water permits and fees $1,893,496
Grant 110,162
Other 3.688

2.007.346

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel and related 1,034,129
Bad debt 186,375
Legal 120,330
Aquifer Science 48,124
Directors compensation 39,850
Granl expense 38,349
Depreciation 30,990
Professional services 26,562
Education and outreach 23,314
Utilities 22,422
Regulatory compliance 19,799
Contracted support 18,588
Groundwater Management Areas joint planning 18.114
Maintenance 16,788
Equipment lease 14,128
IT maintenance 12,000
HCP project 11,800
Advertising 10,248
Other 99.303

1.791.213

CHANGE [N NET POSITION 216,133
BEGINNING NET POSITION 1.372.888
ENDING NET POSITION $1.589.021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
10



BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from water permit and other use fees $2,210,052
Other cash receipts 3,688
Payments to employees for services (1,066,929)
Payments to suppliers for goods and scrvices {668.553)

478.258

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (127.706)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investments (24.628)
NET CHANGE IN CASH 325,924
BEGINNING CASH 135,419
ENDING CASH 461,343

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income $216,133
Depreciation 30,990
Change in accounts receivable (110,339)
Change in prepaid expense (173)
Change in accrued payroll liabilities 7,050
Change in accounts payable 17,864
Change in deferred revenue 322,540
Change in conservation credits (5.807)

$478 258

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
11



BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION

The Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District (District) is a Groundwater
Conservation District created in 1986 by the Texas Water Commission, validated in 1987 by
the 70th Legislature of the State of Texas (Senate Bill 988), and confirmed by the voters on
August &, 1987. As a Groundwater Conservation District, the District's statutory purpose and
adopted mission is to conserve, preserve, protect, enhance recharge, and prevent waste of
groundwater and preserving all aquifers within the District.

Upon creation, the District’s jurisdictional area encompassed approximately 255 square miles
and was generally defined to include all the area within the Barton Springs segment of the
Edwards Aquifer with an extended utility service area to the east. In 2015, the 84th Texas
Legislature (House Bill 3405) expanded the District's jurisdictional area to include the portion
of Hays County located within the boundaries of the Edwards Aquifer Authority excluding
the overlapping area in the Plum Creck Conscrvation District. The newly annexed area,
designated as "Shared Territory," excludes the Edwards Aquifer and includes all other
aquifers, including the underlying Trinity. The District's jurisdictional area now encompasses
approximately 420 square miles and includes both urban and rural areas in southern Travis
County, central and eastern Hays County, and portions of northwestern Caldwell County.

The District's statutory authority is derived primarily from the enabling lcgislation creating
the District, Senate Bill 988, 70th RS, now codified at Special District Local Laws Code
Chapter 8802, and Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code. The enabling legislation creating the
District provides that the District may assess fees “on an annual basis, based on the size of
column pipe used in the wells, the production capacity of the well, or actual, authorized, or
anticipated pumpage.” The House Bill 2294 in the 74th Legislative Session further provided
that the City of Austin can be required to pay a water use fee not exceeding 60% of the sum
of (1) the total production fees received from all permitted users, and (2) the water use fee of
the City of Austin. House Bill 3405 further amended the District's enabling legislation by
setting limits on the total annuval water use fee assessed to the City of Austin.

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with gencrally accepted
accounting principles {GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow
the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through
November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict or contradict GASB
pronouncements. Although the District has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued
after that date, the District has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies
established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below,



NOTE 2:

BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

These financial statements present the operations of the District alone, and include no
component units, As defined by GASB Statement No. 14 the Financial Reporting Entity,
and GASB Statement No. 39, an Amendment to Statement No. 14, component units are
legally separate entities that would be included in the Districts reporting entity because
of the significance of their operating or financial relationships with the District. Based on
the specific criteria in the Statement, the District has no component units and is not a
component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by the Statement.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic financial statements of a governmental entity normally include both government-
wide and fund financial statements. However, because the District only has one fund, only
fund financial statements arc presented.

The District’s operations are accounted for in the proprietary fund type called an
enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for business-type
operations for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The focus of
proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
position, financial position, and cash flows.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The District’s business-type activities are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Fees and charges and other exchange revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Additions, improvements and other capital
outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets
is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 25-30 years
Office furniture and cquipment 3-10 years
Field equipment 5-7 years
Vehicles 5 years

13



NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accrues accumulated unpaid vacation leave and associated employee-related
costs when earned by the employee.

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of water permit fees reccived in the current fiscal year which
are applicable to the succeeding fiscal year. These fees will be recognized as revenue in
the fiscal year to which they apply.

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES

The District propriclary fund type distinguishes between operating and nonoperating
revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses consist of charges for services
(consisting of fees assessed for permittees’ permitted pumpage)} and the costs of providing
those services, including depreciation. All other revenues and expenses are reported as
nonoperating. There were no significant nonoperating revenues or expenses during the
year.

NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in
capital assets consists of capital asscts, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or
improvements of those assets.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosurc of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ {from those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

At August 31, 2016, the carrying amount of the District’s cash deposits was $50,358, and the
bank balance was $198,826. Short-term investments of $1,141,022 are invested with
TexPool. The carrying value of these deposits and investments approximates fair value.

&1



NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code (the Public Funds Investment Act) authorizes
the District to invest its funds in a manner that primarily emphasizes safety of principal and
liquidity, addresses investment diversification, yield, and maturity and addresses the quality
and capability of investment personnet.

TexPool is a local government investment pool. These investments are carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair vatue. The State Comptroller oversees TexPool. with Federated
Investors managing the daily operations of the pool under a contract with the State
Comptroller. TexPool allows shareholders the ability to deposit or withdraw funds on a daily
basis. Such funds seek to maintain a constant net assct value of $1.00, although this cannot
be fully guaranteed. TexPool is rated AAAm (the highest rating a local government
investment pool can achieve) and must maintain a dollar weighted average maturity not to
exceed 60 days, which is the limit. At August 31,2016, the TexPool portfolio had a weighted
average maturity of 42 days. However, the District considers the holdings in this fund to have
aone day weighted average maturity because the share position can usually be redeemed each
day at the discretion of the shareholder, unless there has been a significant change in value.

The District has adopted an investment stratcgy to pursue limited investment risk, the
objectives of which are safety of principal, maintenance of adcquate liquidity, maximization
of return on investments and maintain public trust from prudent investment activities. The
District is authorized to invest in its depository accounts with banks or invest in TexPool.
During the year, the District complied with its investment policy.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property damage,
and worker’s compensation. The District insures against risk through commercial insurance.

CONSERVATION CREDITS

The District supports and encourages a permittee’s efforts to conserve water and to reduce
annual pumpagc as a result of conservation efforts by providing a credit to the permittee’s
account for the ensuing fiscal year. To be eligible for the credit, the permittee’s reported
purmpage volume must be less than the maximum amount pumped on an annual basis in the
last three fiscal years, and the permittee must meet other requirements regarding submission
of timely payments and meter readings. Conservation credits awarded for fiscal year ending
August 31, 2016 amounted to $32,383.



BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6: RETIREMENT PLAN

Effective, September 1, 1991, the District’s Board of Directors established a defined benefit
contribution retirement plan, which is a money purchase pension plan and trust, known as the
Barton Springs/ Edwards Aquifer Conservation District Retirement Plan and Trust (the Plan).
The Plan is administered by Standard Relirement Services, Inc. and provides retirement
benefits for all full-time employees who are at least twenty-one years of age and have twelve
months of service.

The administrator separately accounts for each employee participant’s interest in individual
accounts, and investments are participant directed. The required employec contribution rate
is 7.5% and is matched by the District in the same amount. Upon entry to the Plan,
employee’s are 50% vested in the District’s contributions. After two years of service, eligible
employees become 100% vested. Forfeitures are allocated first to pay Plan administrative
expenses, then used to reduce employer contributions. For fiscal year ended August 31,2016
the District’s contribution to the Plan were $56,620.

NOTE 7: CAPITAL ASSETS

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land §165,415 50 50 $165,415
Construction in progress 0 127,706 0 127,706
Depreciable assets:
Building and improvements 268,588 0 0 268,588
Office furniture and equipment 33,253 0 0 33,253
Field equipment 376,488 0 0 376,488
Vehicles 78,339 0 0 78,339
Accumulated depreciation (564.746)  (30.990) 0 (595.736)
$357.337 96.716 50 $454.053

NOTE 8: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

50% of the District’s revenue is from one permittee as required by the District’s enabling
legislation.



NOTE | - LITIGATION

The District was not actively involved in any litigation during FY 2015. However, there were other

legal matters beyond general and personnel matters that required material expenditures for legal
services in FY 2016.

1.

With the passage of HB 3405 in the 2015 legislative session, the District expanded its
boundaries to include previously unregulated portions of the Trinity Aquifer (and other non-
Edwards aquifers) in Hays County. The bill also required the issuance of temporary
permits and subsequently, the conversion of those temporary permits into regular permits
for existing well owners. The implementation of HB 3405 continued from FY 2015 into FY
2016 requiring substantial legal expense to develop the necessary rules to implement the
bill and the new permitting process in addition to a redistricting effort to redraw the three
non-Austin precinct boundaries (Precincts 1, 2, and 3) to cover the annexed shared
territory. Rules are in place and the majority of the temporary permits were converted to
regular permits in FY 2016 without protest or contested cases. The District does, however,
anticipate additional legal expense associated with the continued implementation of HB
3405 including expenses to address a likely contested case and/or legal challenge
associated with the the one remaining temporary permit conversion.

The District has been actively involved in reviewing and providing comments to the TPDES
permit application filed by the City of Dripping Springs to authorize an unprecedented
direct discharge of treated effluent into Onion Creek above the recharge zones of the
Trinity and Edwards Aquifers. This involved expenditures for legal services to prepare
comments, resolutions, and confer with the applicant and affected parties. The District

has further stated opposition to the draft permit and anticipates continued legal expense
in FY 2017 if the permit is contested.



NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

BARTON SPRINGS/EDWARDS AQUIFER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION

A

he District was not actively involved in any lifigation during fiscal year 2016. Howe%er,
theéxg were other legal proceedings that required and will likely continue to require a rgltively
minohamount of related legal services in fiscal year 2016:

A. In fiscal year 2010, TCEQ tssued its final (and revised) recommendatighs concerning
provision of Ggoundwater Conservation District (GCD) protection to thg/areas in the Hill
Country Priority Sroundwater Management Area that did not have GCDs/ The nature of these
recommendations, Which included ordering the District to consider apfiexing a large area in
southwestern Travis YCounty among other actions, and the spbsequent responses by
stakeholders resulted in“g contested-case hearing by the State/Office of Administrative
Hearings (SOAH). Howevex, in early fiscal year 2013 the heagihg was abated until after the
2013 legislative session.

The matter was resumed in late fiscahycar 2013 after the'session until January of 2014 when
the TCEQ cancelled the hearing. Themg has been ngTCEQ activity on this matter but it is
likely that the matter will come up agaifNn fisca year 2016 in the build-up to the 2017
legislative session at which time the District Wwi]lfequire additional legal services to respond.

B. The District was very active in fiscgd yearNJ015 in reviewing and responding to
environmental documents and increased aghvity associated with State Highway 45 Southwest.
This activity involved legal review of the'District's conseh decree, briefings to the Board, and
participation in a Central Texas Regigfial Mobility Authorith (CTRMA) technical workgroup
lo review the stormwater control designs. The activity assdgiated with the supplemental
agreement was ongoing in fiscalyear 2015 carrying over into fisgal year 2016, The District
is anticipating continued leggd work in fiscal year 2016 but with Mw risk of extraordinary
unbudgeted legal expense

C. With the passage,6f HB 3403 in the 2015 legislative session, the Distxjct expanded its
boundaries to inc|dde previously unregulated portions of the Trinity Aqui¥er (and other
non-Edwards agsifers) in Hays County. The bill also required the issuance oXtemporary
permits and sy¥scquently, the conversion of those temporary permits into regular phyymits for
existing welowners. The implementation of HB 3405 required substantial legal expense to
develop th€ necessary rules to implement the bill and the new permitting process. This\york
began i fiscal year 20135 but has carried over into fiscal year 2016. The District #{so
anticifates additional legal expensc associated with the implementation of HB 34035 including
expénses to address contested permits, legal challenges. and redistricting to expand the three
ngn-Austin precincts into the shared territory.

COMMITMENT

The District entered into a contract with an engineering firm in the amount of $263,000 for
Brackish Desalination Studies of the Edwards Aquifer. The contract can be canceled at any
time with a five day notice.

17

65



Board of Directors and Management

Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District
COMMUNICATIONS WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

We have audited the financial statements of Barlon Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District
(District) for the year ended August 31, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated:f_I_)ATE, a
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit in our engagement letter to you dated 27 October 2016. Professional standards also require that we
provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter, our responstbility, as described by professional standards, is to express
an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute. assurance and because we will not
perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist
and not be detected by us. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or
violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the {inancial
statements. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend
to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit of the financial stalements of the District, we considered the
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control.



Board of Directors and Management

Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District
Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Page 2

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. Our
consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these
limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Accounting Policies
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant

accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during fiscal
year 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that futurc cvents affecting them may differ
significantly from those cxpected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the District’s financial statements
was:

Management’s cstimates of the useful lives of fixed assets, and the related estimate of depreciation
expense are based on general knowledge of the assets involved and customary lives used by other
organizations for similar assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimated uscful lives of fixed assets (and related accumulated depreciation), in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountcred no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our

audit.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, ather than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
slatements taken as a whole.



Board of Directors and Management

Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District
Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Page 3

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting. reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s reporl. We are pleased to repost that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certai .cap:g_ge?talions from management that are included in the management
representation letter datcd DATE.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. Ifa consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type
of auditor's opinion thalt may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States
of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconcited
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
staternents or to the financtal statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

_DATE-
Austin, Texas



Item 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

b. Discussion and possible action related to approving the
District’s FY 2016 Annual Report and submitting it to the
TCEQ.
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1.0 BACKGROUND

The Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District (“District”) Bylaws require the
District Board President or General Manager to report on the status of the District and its programs
annually to the Board and to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). This
document is the Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2015, covering the period from September 1, 2014
to August 31, 2015.

According to District Bylaw 4-6, this report shall include:

1. The status of the aquifer and the District's programs;

2. A financial report to include the report of the annual audit and the security of any District

investments;

A review and evaluation of professional services rendered to the District;

A status report of any capital projects of the District; and

5. The evaluation of the District's long-range plans pursuant to §36.107 (now §36.1071) of the
Texas Water Code (TWC).

oW

This introductory section provides an overview of the District, and summarizes the mission and
vision of the District, and its Board-established critical success factors. Other major report sections
that follow include a summary of the active programs in FY 2016; a recap of other specific
information required by statute, including an assessment of performance in terms of objectives and
performance standards identified in the prevailing Management Plan; and a financial summary.
The annual audit report conducted by an independent audit firm is included in its entirety as
Appendix A. The Board’s assessment of progress toward the Management Plan’s objectives by
performance standards and the basis for that assessment are included as Appendix B.

1.1 General Information about the District

The District was created in 1987 by the 70" Texas Legislature, under Senate Bill 988. lts statutory
authorities include Chapter 52 (later revised to Chapter 36) of the Texas Water Code (TWC),
applicable to all groundwater conservation districts (GCDs) in the state, and the District’s enabling
legislation, now codified as Chapter 8802, Special District Local Laws Code (SDLLC). The
District's legislative mandate is to conserve, protect, and enhance the groundwater resources
located within the District boundaries. The District has the power and authority to undertake
various studies, assess fees on groundwater pumpage and transport, and to implement structural
facilities and non-structural programs to achieve its statutory mandate. The District has
rulemaking authority to implement its policies and procedures and to help ensure the management
of groundwater resources. The District is not a taxing authority. Its only sources of income are
groundwater production fees, including water use fee supplement paid by the City of Austin;
administrative processing fees; and occasional grants from various local, state, and federal
programs for special projects.

Upon creation in 1987, the District’s jurisdictional area encompassed approximately 255 square
miles and was generally defined to include all the area within the Barton Springs segment of the
Edwards Aquifer with an extended area to the east to incorporate the service areas of the
Creedmoor-Maha Water Supply Corporation, Goforth Special Utility District, and Monarch

74



Utilities. In this area, designated as the “Exclusive Territory”, the District has authority over all
groundwater resources. In 2015, the 84™ Texas Legislature (House Bill 3405) expanded the
District’s jurisdictional area to include the portion of Hays County located within the boundaries
of the Edwards Aquifer Authority excluding the overlapping area in the Plum Creek Conservation
District (see Figure 1). The newly annexed area, designated as ‘“Shared Territory,” excludes the
Edwards Aquifer and includes all other aquifers, including the underlying Trinity. The District
serves southern Travis County, central and eastern Hays County, and portions of northwestern
Caldwell County. The District’s jurisdictional area including the Shared Territory encompasses
approximately 420 square miles and includes both urban and rural areas.

Water from the Barton Springs segment of the Edwards Aquifer serves as the primary water source
for public water supply, industrial, and commercial purposes in the District and is a major source
of high quality base flow to the Colorado River via discharge through the Barton Springs complex.
The Barton Springs complex provides the only known habitat for the listed endangered Barton
springs and Austin blind salamanders under the federal Endangered Species Act, requiring all
activities that would or could adversely affect the species to represent optimal conservation efforts.
The Trinity Aquifer, underlying the Edwards, is an important primary water resource in some parts
of the District and is increasingly being developed as an alternative water supply to the
oversubscribed Edwards Aquifer in both the Exclusive and Shared Territory. Some wells in the
District also produce water from the Taylor and Austin Chalk formations as well as various alluvial
deposits along river and stream banks.

A five-member Board of Directors (“Board”) govems the District. The Directors are elected in
even-numbered years to staggered four-year terms from the five single-member precincts that
comprise the District. As a result of legislation in 2011 and subsequent Board action in late FY
2011, director elections were moved from the May local elections date to the November general
elections date.

In FY 2016, there was no District election held (the next election will be November 8, 2016 for
District precincts 1, 3, and 4).

In accordance with District Bylaws, the Board elects its officers for one-year terms in December
of each year. The elected officers in December 2015 were Blayne Stansberry, President; Craig
Smith, Vice President; and Blake Dorsett, Secretary. As a local political subdivision of the State
of Texas, all meetings of the Board are conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, and
the District’s business is subject to the Texas Public Information Act.
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Figure I - The District’s territory including the expanded Shared Territory and the adjacent Groundwater Conservation

Districts and their'respective jurisdiction over aquifers.
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1.2  District Mission and Vision Statements

The Board of Directors of the District has assessed and articulated not only the mission of the
District but also its vision and overarching strategic purpose.

The mission of the District is largely mandated by and adapted from its enabling legislation and
statutes:

“The Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District, as the responsible public
agency and authority, is committed to conserving, protecting, recharging, and preventing
waste of groundwater and to preserving all aquifers within the District.”

The vision of the District provides a succinct statement of the ultimate, continuing goal of the
District, describing the standard by which it will execute its mission:

“The Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District will excel in its operations
and administration so that it is considered the model and standard for other groundwater
districts.”

The overarching strategic purpose articulates more action-oriented direction consistent with the
mission and vision;

“We will manage the District aquifers to optimize the sustainable uses of groundwater in
satisfying community interests."”’

1.3 District Critical Success Factors

The District has established a set of continuing “critical success factors” that flow from and are
generally consistent with the goals and objectives that are in the Management Plan. These critical
success factors include:

e Providing sound science to support and form the basis of policy and tactical decisions made
by the District that affect water supply users and endangered species habitat;

s Being highly efficient, accurate, and fair in administering staff activities related to all District
programs;

» Developing and instituting an equitable and consistently administered regulatory program that
is required to serve our mission;

» Becoming a respected and effective part of the state and local political landscape for water
resource management and its stakeholder communities;

» Serving our permittees, stakeholders, and the public at large as a readily accessible source of
first resort for reliable information about local water, groundwater, aquifer science, water use
and conservation; and

e Providing the programmatic and resource basis for innovative, cost-effective solutions to
augment the sustainable quantity of water in the District and to protect the quality of District
waters required for various existing uses.
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2.0 DISTRICT PROGRAM AREAS AND TEAM HIGHLIGHTS FOR
2016

The District continues to use successfully a team-oriented organizational structure, in which all
staff members are assigned to a primary team but also support other teams as needs arise. Each
staff member works under the direct supervision and direct reports to their respective team leaders
who are responsible for executing team-specific responsibilities and duties. Each team leader
works under the supervision and direct reports to the General Manager, All staff members
ultimately report to the General Manager for administrative supervisory purposes.

This section of the report summarizes the operational teams that existed throughout FY 2016 and
provides some highlights and notable achievements for each. Appendix B contains more
information and details on the work undertaken by these teams in support of the various goals,
objectives, and perforrance standards identified in the applicable 2014 District Management Plan.

2.1 General Management

Mr. John Dupnik served as the District‘s General Manager (GM). The GM is responsible for the
day-to-day business of the District, and is an ex-officioc member of all the other teams. The GM:

¢ Ensures the policies and direction of the Board of Directors are implemented effectively,
appropriately, and efficiently;

» Provides leadership, both inside and outside the District organization, in accomplishing the
mission, vision, and goals of the District; and

» Serves as an advocate for the staff with the Board and an advocate for the Board with the staff.

» The key areas of functional responsibilities for the GM include staff management and
development, programmatic planning and execution, stakeholder relationship development
and cultivation, and financial administration of the District.

In FY 2016, some highlights for the Office of the GM included:

* Coordinated the conduct of all of the District’s FY 2016 business within FY 2016 budget
constraints with only one mid-year budget amendment to adjust with the evolving work load
and objectives.

e Maintained a productive, efficient, and motivated staff, and providing interns to assist the
regular staff in continuing scientific investigations in an atmosphere of change and substantial
additional workload associated with annexation activities and other special projects.

e Coordinated with the District legislative consultant, Sledge Law Group, and the Board
Legislative Committee, in tracking the interim committee hearings on charges of interest to the
District which included providing written responses to the area legislators in response to
comunittee testimony, and initiating discussion with Legislators on potential District legislative
initiatives in the 85" Session.



Continued to manage extraordinary workload associated with annexation of the Shared
Territory in Hays County and the implementation of H.B. 3405 which included supervision of
additional rule making, processing of the more complicated and complicated temporary permit
conversions, and redistricting of all five director precincts.

Coordinated the work of the District’s HCP consultant and staff to work closely with USFWS
staff and consultants to modify and revise the draft HCP and EIS where it was approved by the
Austin office for submittal to the Regional USFWS office in Albuquerque for review.

Participated with the District’s engineering consultant in CTRMA’s technical working group
on State Highway 45 Southwest stormwater control designs in accordance with the District
consent decree through monthly meetings and review of the design plans. This culminated in
submittal of formal technical comments on February 11, 2016.

Participated actively in the joint groundwater planning processes of Groundwater Management
Area (GMA) 9 and served as the District Representative to GMA 10, including related
interfaces with the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB), other GCDs in the two GMAs,
and stakeholder meetings. This year’s efforts wrapped up the GMA’s second round of
planning with the “proposal” of updated DFCs including a revised DFC for the Saline Edwards
Aquifer.

Participated actively in regional water planning group activities, including serving as the GMA
10’s voting Representative to Region K, and monitoring Region L groundwater-related
planning activities. Efforts were successful in getting District-supported water supply
strategies including: brackish Edwards’s desalination and Edwards/Trinity ASR into the
Region K Initially Prepared Plan (IPP).

2.2 Administrative Team

Ms. Dana Wilson serves as the Leader of the Administrative Team, with Ms. Tammy Raymond
and Ms. Shannon DeLong as team members for administrative programs support. Ms. DeLong
continued to work on a three-quarter time basis throughout FY 2016, including telecommuting one
day per week.

The Administrative Programs Team is responsible for banking, accounting, timekeeping and
payroll administration, records retention and management, facilities and vehicle fleet management,
personnel and human resources administration, contracts administration, director compensation
and reimbursement administration, and state/federal grant administration.

In FY 2016, some highlights for the Administrative and General Services Team included:

Maintaining the financial records to receive a clean financial audit (see Appendix A);

Administering the director elections, which was minimal for FY 2016 since the three directors
ran unopposed;

Supporting the District’s biennium legislative process; which included supporting the
legislatively-mandated Hays County Annexation process that added Shared Territory, required
new rules, and acquired new permittees;
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Continuing the process of electronically scanning historical hard-copy records for archival
purposes;

Supporting the revisions of various parts of the Employee Policy Manual and subpolicies;

Supporting the continuing phases of annual office updating/remodeling; and

Assisting the District’s information technology (IT) consultant in making improvements to the
IT infrastructure and resolving various staff IT issues.

2.3  Aquifer Science Team

Dr. Brian Smith, P.G. serves as the Leader of the Aquifer Science Team, which is involved in
various internally- and externally-funded groundwater research and assessment programs. The
team is supported by Senior Hydrogeologist Brian Hunt, P.G., Hydrogeologic Technician Justin
Camp, and from time to time other staff members, including interns.

To protect and manage the groundwater resources of the District’s aquifers, the District continued
an active research program that is designed to better understand the hydrogeology and
hydrodynamics of aquifers in the District, and to advise the Board on policy-related decisions.

In FY 2016, some highlights for the Aquifer Science Team included:

Developed new technical reports, presented numerous technical talks with published abstracts,
publishing technical papers, and attended technical conferences including:

o South Central Texas Water Research Interest Group (Uvalde, 6/9/16)

o Austin Geological Society: Austin Chalk Symposium and Field Trip Guidebook (10/17-
18/15)

o 14™ Sinkhole Conference in Rochester, Minnesota (October 2015)

o Karst Waters Institute conference on karst and public health in San Juan, Puerto Rico
(January 2016)

o South Central Texas Water Research Interest Group (Bandera, 12/3/15)

Presented technical information and studies to the public and students:

o Barton Springs University (9/18/16)
o Hydrogeo Workshop, Cave Without A Name (10/1-2/16)

Collected hourly water-level data from about 40 wells in the Edwards and Trinity Aquifers,
and water-level data from the District’s two multiport monitor wells.

Established about 12 Trinity monitor wells and collected water-level data and other data from
the newly annexed area of Hays County in anticipation of the Electro Purification aquifer test.

Finalized and published “Guidelines for Hydrogeologic Reports and Aquifer Testing” May
2016.



Determined and documented drought status, including keeping the District’s drought monitor
blog up to date.

Participated with GMA 10 in technical discussions.

o Refined the Edwards Saline Zone DFC to be 75 ft of drawdown and estimated resulting
MAG.

o Worked with Intera on developing modeling tools to assess the influence of large-scale
pumping on the Middle Trinity DFC (Intera technical memo May 2016).

Participated with GMA 9 in technical discussions regarding the Trinity Hill Country DFC and
the explanatory report.

o Proposed DFCs and non-relevant aquifers were voted on and approved at the September
28, 2015 (Dripping Springs) meeting;

o The District Board approved the DFCs and Explanatory Report; GMA 9 approval of the
ER on 4/18/16 (Dripping Springs);

o Published technical note: Hunt, B.B., and B.A. Smith, 2016, Desired Future Condition
Monitoring of the Middle Trinity Aquifer, Groundwater Management Area 9, Central
Texas. BSEACD Technical Note 2016-0415. April 2016, 9 pp.

Published: Hunt, B.B., A. Andrews, and B.A. Smith, 2016, Hydraulic Conductivity Testing in
the Edwards and Trinity Aquifers Using Multiport Monitor Well Systems, Hays County,
Central Texas. Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation District Report of
Investigations. BSEACD RI 2016-0831, August 2016, 39 p.

Performed studies with the Edwards Aquifer Authority to characterize the groundwater flow
in the Blanco Watershed.

Published paper: Hunt, B. B, A. S. Broun, D. A. Wierman, D. A. Johns, and B. A. Smith,
2016, Surface-water and groundwater interactions along Onion Creek, Central Texas: Gulf
Coast Association of Geological Societies Transactions, v. 66, p. 261-282.

Continued studies and data collection with the Hays Trinity GCD and the City of Austin to
characterize the surface and groundwater interaction in the Onion Creek watershed.

Continued development and data collection of a geologic database of the Edwards and Trinity
Aquifers in central Texas in cooperation with the EAA and the HTGCD.

Maintained the Antioch Cave Recharge Enhancement Project as an ongoing part of the 319(h)
grant from EPA and TCEQ), and maintaining a CWQMN site on behalf of TCEQ.

Began work with the TWDB feasibility grant, including the drilling and installation of a
multiport monitor well in the saline Edwards (August 2016).

81



o Implemented, in cooperation with Magellan Pipeline Company, an annual sampling program
related to the operation of the Longhom Pipeline that transports crude oil. In March 2016, staff
sampled about eight springs and well sites for hydrocarbon contaminants as a screening test
for BTEX and TPH. Staff also worked on locations for the installation of two new monitor
wells anticipated in FY 2017.

» Assisted Drs. Thomas Grimshaw and Mark Helper (UT Austin) with the geologic mapping of
the Mountain City Quadrangle. This included focused mapping areas such as the Rutherford
Ranch.

¢ Incooperation with the Texas Water Development Board, Aquifer Science staff sampled about
30 wells and springs for major ions and isotope analyses.

» Worked with geochemist Bruce Darling to assess the quality of geochemistry database derived
from the TWDB (Phase 1).

* Reviewed and analyzed the Needmore Water LLC aquifer test and hydrogeologic report
(March 2016) and published a technical memo of the test and the potential for unreasonable
impact from the permit request.

» Cooperated with Travis County on various groundwater studies including establishing a flow
station at Shield Ranch, monitoring and logging some wells at Shield Ranch, and planning for
installing a multiport monitor well in Travis County.

» Supported research in conjunction with the University of Malaga into the natural fluorescence
and field parameters from the surface and groundwater.

e Brian Smith has continued serving on the City of Austin Environmental Commission.

24 Education and Community Qutreach Team

Ms. Robin Havens Gary serves as the leader of the Education and Community Qutreach Team.
Ms. Gary, who is the District’s Environmental Educator, GIS Specialist, and Public Information
Coordinator, and is the primary member and team lead for the Education and Community Outreach
Team in FY 2016. Ms. Gary collaborates regularly with other members of the staff, including
interns, to maintain a diverse and effective Education and Outreach program.

The District continues its active, multi-dimensional educational program that emphasizes
awareness of the finite and fragile aspects of the groundwater resources in the District. To increase
awareness of District programs and roles, staff applied a multi-faceted approach. A new monthly
digital newsletter began circulation in October. Feedback and metrics show that the more frequent
updates in the mobile-friendly, digital format has been highly popular. Subscribers receive regular
updates on permitting, aquifer science, events, and programs. Each monthly eNews was
opened/accessed over 1,000 times. Additionally, the website was overhauled and updated to
increase accessibility and content management. Social media posts increased distribution of
announcements and news and received high view rates. Maps of scientific research results,
expanded territory and shared jurisdiction, Director precinct redistricting, and expanded



management zones are available through the District website, viewable at the District, and/or in
District publications. The 2016 Well Water Check-up was showcased as an open house that
provided an opportunity for well owners, particularly those in the newly annexed area, a chance to
meet staff and have their water analyzed for free. Over 2,000 postcards were mailed to
homeowners in the shared territory in neighborhoods that have a high density of Trinity wells.
Finally, general program overview advertisements were placed in the 2016 Football Programs of
San Marcos, Hays, Lehman, Austin, Travis, Bowie, Crockett, and Akins High Schools.

FY 2016 was a unique year in that the District was not in any declared drought stage. Instead, in
June 2016 the water level in the Lovelady Monitor Well reached the highest level in 24 years. This
landmark was highlighted in a press release, in the eNews, and on the Hydro blog. In August,
heavy rain caused a sewage overflow, though the City of Austin took corrective action before it
reached the recharge zone; nearby well owners were individually notified and a press release went
out. With the recent annexation of the Shared Territory, Education and Outreach efforts focused
on increasing awareness of the importance of coordinated management, helping new residents
determine which Director represents them, and contining to develop relationships with well owners
in the new area.

The Education and Community Outreach Team constantly seeks to maintain and create new
partnerships with like-minded local entities to more efficiently and effectively carry out the
District’s mission. Through these partnerships, staff members augment their knowledge base and
are able to make a contribution to efforts that reach larger and more diverse audiences. This year
staff continued partnerships with the Austin Youth River Watch, Central Texas Water Efficiency
Network (CTWEN), Capital Area Master Naturalists (CAMN), COA, City of Sunset Valley,
Colorado River Alliance, EAA, Greater Edwards Aquifer Alliance, Hill Country Alliance, Keep
Austin Beautiful, Lady Bird Johnson Wildflower Center, LCRA, Meadows Center, Save Barton
Creek Association (SBCA), San Antonio River Authority, San Antonio Water System, Shield
Ranch, Splash! Exhibit, Texas Cave Management Association, Texas Parks and Wildlife
Department (TPWD), TWDB, University of Texas's Bureau of Economic Geology, and
University of Texas Jackson School of Geosciences.

In FY 2016, some highlights of the Education and Community Outreach Team included:

* Transitioning to 2 monthly eNews bulletin with automated subscribe/unsubscribe capabilities,

» Participating in approximately 23 outreach events (including field trips, presentations, and
events) that reached approximately 1,913 adults and 1,335 children,

¢ Hosting the fifth annual Water Conservation Symposium: " Conservation, Come Drought or
High Water" in collaboration with the water providers and non-profits participating in the
CTWEN,

o Hosting the 11™ Annual Groundwater to the Gulf Summer Institute for Educators in
collaboration with other state, local, and non-profit water educators, which trained 42 teachers
who in turn reach over 4,200 students annually, and
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Providing support for the 2016 Rainwater Revival event that brings rainwater harvesting
system installers, suppliers, water haulers and other experts together to serve as a resource for
homeowners and business owners that are interested in using rainwater as an alternate supply.

25 REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Regulatory Compliance Team consists of two Regulatory Compliance Coordinators and one
Regulatory Compliance Technician who are responsible for a wide range of the District’s
responsibilities including drought management, pumpage tracking/compliance assessment,
rulemaking, rule and well construction standard interpretation, permitting, enforcement, well
inspections, well pluggings, and drilling oversight. Regulatory Compliance Team members have
also actively attended and participated in community outreach and regional development and
planning groups, and served as District liaisons to local municipalities, political subdivisions,
permittees, and licensed drillers and pump installers in the area.

Highlights of the Regulatory Compliance Team in FY 2016:

Continued Implementation of H.B. 3405: The District’s jurisdiction was expanded on June
19, 2015 through the passage of H.B. 3405, and well owners with an existing nonexempt use
were immediately provided a three-month period to apply for a Temporary Permit. In early FY
2016 (September-October 2015) the District received and approved 21 Temporary Permit
Applications. The Temporary Permits provided well owners with an interim authorization to
operate a well prior to conversion to a Regular Historical Production Permit. The majority of
those Temporary Permits were further evaluated and processed for conversion to a Regular
Production Permit. At the April 28" Board Meeting, the District Board of Directors held a
public hearing to approve 14 of the Temporary Permits for conversion to Regular Production
Permits. There was a 20-day public comment period to provide an opportunity to submit
comments or formal protests on proposed approval of the permit conversions. No comments
were received and the Board approved all 14 permits as Historical Trinity Production Permits.
In May — June 2016, two additional Temporary Permits (Texas Old Town &, Aqua Texas)
were approved for conversion, and one Temporary Permit (Needmore Water LLC) remained
under review for conversion as of August 2016.

Inspections & Investigations: Staff completed a total of 32 inspections related to special
investigations, site permittee inspections, and well permit applications.

FY 16 TOTAL Inspections/ Investigations/ Onsite Visits 3
Exempt Well Inspections

Limited Production Permit Inspections
Individual Production Permit Inspections
Test Well Inspections

Plugging Inspections

Special Investigation Inspections

Qther Permittee Inspections
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Conservation Credits: The District issued a total of $32,382.54 in credits in FY 2016 with
$20,239.09 being issued to 15 permittees, and $12,143.45 being issued to the City of Austin.

Permittees donating credits back to the District’s camp scholarship fund included Centex
Materials (§ 2,138.76), Creedmoor-Maha Water Supply Corporation ($ 547.89), Goforth
Special Utility District (§ 600.00), Oak Forest Water Supply Corporation ($ 130.22), and Texas
Lehigh Cement Company ($ 656.55).

Enforcement: There were no formal enforcement actions initiated in FY 2016.

Rulemaking: During FY 20186, the District adopted amendments and revisions to the Rules
and Bylaws. A quorum of the District Board of Directors voted unanimously to adopt the
proposed revisions at its regular meeting on April 28, 2016. The rule making process was
formally initiated in January 2016 as part of an ongoing effort to implement H.B. 3405 which
annexed new area in Hays County, and to better equip the District to manage prospective large-
scale Trinity Aquifer water projects. There was a 20-day public comment period to provide an
opportunity for rule review and to submit comments or formal protests on the proposed rules.
A public hearing was held on March 24" and the Board delayed action on adoption of the rules
to consider the entire set of comments received from the public. The proposed rule changes
were further modified to address the public comments submitted and to better clarify the
process and intent of the rules. The adopted rule amendments focused overall on:

o Management strategies that will protect existing wells and preserve the long-term
availability of water supplies from the Trinity Aquifer;

o Aquifer test, notice, and monitoring requirements for large-scale groundwater projects; and

o Establishing a policy and permitting framework for a science-based evaluation of the
potential for unreasonable impacts to existing wells and the aquifer, and requirements to
avoid or mitigate for such impacts.

External Reviews, Coordination, and Outreach. Workgroups and projects involving staff
participation included:

Aquifer Storage and Recovery Technical Workgroups,

SH 45 SW Technical Workgroups,

WPAP Wastewater Permit Reviews,

Regular meetings of the Regional Water Quality Protection Plan workgroup, and
Well permitting and registration efforts in the shared territory.

OO0 0 00

Drought Management: The District declared No-Drought status on January 29, 2015 and
remained in Non-Drought status throughout FY 2016.
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Permitting Summary:

A summary of the new wells drilled in FY 2016 is provided in the table below.

A summary of permitting applications that were processed in FY 2016 is provided in the table

below.

A summary of the individual production permits (including regular and temporary permits) that

FY 16 TOTAL New Wells

New Exempt Wells 5
Nonexempt Domestic Wells (LPPs) 13
Individual Wells 2
Test Wells 6*
Replacement Wells 2
*Electro Purification 's six Test Wells were drilled prior to annexation

FY 16 TOTAL Permit Applications

Minor Amendment 1

Major Amendments 0

New Exempt Well 3

Limited Production Permit (Nonexempt Domestic Wells) 13
Individual Production Permit 6

New Individual Well Drilling Authorizations /Modification 3
Test Well 2
Well Plugging 12

Replacement Well 2

Temporary Permit 21
Regular Permit (Temporary Permit Conversion) 16

were processed in FY 2016 is provided in the table below.

FY 16 Individual Production Permits Approved

Permit Volume
(gal/yr) Permittee Permit Type
1 220,000 Rick Seiders Historical Trinity
2 1,000,000 Jump Creek LLC Historical Trinity
3 1,005,000 Plant at Kyle Historical Trinity
4 80,000,000 Onion Creek Golf Group Historical Trinity
5 1,260,000* Mesa Qaks* Historical Trinity
6 270,000,000* TJ Higginbotham* Conditional Edwards

*After permit approval these permits became expired/non-active during FY 2016
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FY 16 (11.B. 3405 An

nexation) Temporary Production Permits Approved

Permit Volume
{gal/yr) Permittee Permit Type
1 100,000 SWTX Pentecostal Church of God Historical Trinity
2 100,000 Las Lomas HOA Historical Trinity
3 180,000 Rolling Oaks Club Inc Historical Trinity
General Telephone Southwest
4 240,000 (Frontier) Historical Trinity
5 490,000 Hays City Holdings Historical Trinity
6 500,000 Tindol Restaurant Group LLC Historical Trinity
Austin Chalk/
7 500,000 St. John's Catholic Church Alluvial
8 750,000 St. Stephen's Episcopal Church Historical Trinity
Tim deJong dba (Wimberley
9 1,000,000 Glassworks) Historical Trinity
10 1,000,000 St. Mark's Episcopal Church Historical Trinity
11 1,200,000 First Christian Church Historical Trinity
12 2,000,000 Log Cabin Plaza Historical Trinity
Austin
13 2,000,000 Chuck Nash Chalk/Alluvial
Texas State University - Freeman
14 2,000,000 Ranch Historical Trinity
15 10,000,000 Texas Old Town Historical Trinity
16 30,000,000 Aqua Texas - Sierra West Historical Trinity
17 32,590,000 Electro Purification Historical Trinity
18 179,965,440 Needmore Water LLC Historical Trinity
General Permit -
19 500,000 Alexandra's House Bed and Breakfast | Historical Trinity
General Permit -
20 500,000 Sol De Mexico Historical Trinity
Middle Trinity
21 | Drilling Authorization | Dale Lowden Aquifer
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FY 16 (H.B. 3405 Annexation)

Regular Productien Permits (Temporary Permit Conversions) Approved

Permit Volume
(gal/yr) Permittee Permit Type

1 100,000 SWTX Pentecostal Church of God Historical Trinity

2 100,000 Las Lomas HOA Historical Trinity

3 180,000 Rolling Oaks Club Inc Historical Trinity
General Telephone Southwest

4 240,000 (Frontier) Historical Trinity

5 490,000 Hays City Holdings Historical Trinity

6 800,000 Tindo! Restaurant Group LLC Historical Trinity

7 500,000 St. John's Catholic Church Austin Chalk/ Alluvial

8 750,000 St. Stephen's Episcopal Church Historical Trinity
Tim deJong dba (Wimberley

9 1,000,000 Glassworks) Historical Trinity

10 1,000,000 St. Mark's Episcopal Church Historical Trinity

11 1,200,000 First Christian Church Historical Trinity

12 2,000,000 Log Cabin Plaza Historical Trinity

13 2,000,000 Chuck Nash Austin Chalk/Alluvial
Texas State University - Freeman

14 2,000,000 Ranch Historical Trinity

15 10,000,000 Texas Old Town Historical Trinity

16 30,000,000 Aqua Texas - Sierra West Historical Trinity

A summary of current permitted pumpage is provided in the tables below.

Total Permits Active to Date
Total Historic Edwards Permits Issued to Date 74
Total Conditional Edwards Permits Issued to Date 24
Total Historic Trinity Permits Issued to Date 26
Total Alluvial/Austin Chalk Permits Issued 2
Total Individual Permitted Wells to Date 186
LPP.General Permits e
Total Permits Issued 109
Total LPP Permitted Wells 109
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: Permitted Pumpage
Edwards MZs gallons cfs acre-feet
Historical (Ind.) 2,358,987,721 10.00 7,239
Historical (LPP) 2,500,000 0.011 8
Total Historical 1 2,361,487,721 10.01 7,247
Conditional (Ind.) | 348 834,948 1 1.48 11,071
Conditional (LPP) | 52 000,000 0.22 160
Total Conditional 400,834,948 1.70 1,230
[Total Edwards | 2,762,322,669 171 8,477
Trinity MZs gallons cfs | acre-feet
Historical (Ind.) 448,966,557 ' 1.90 1,378
Other Aquifers | gallons cfs acre-feet
MZs
Historical (Ind.) 2,500,000 0.01 8
Total Permitted | 3.213,789,226 13.62 | 9,863
B2 Permitted Transport. =~
i | gallons _lefs’  |acrefeet |
FY 2016 0 0 0
Total Permitted | 400,000,000 1.70 1,227.55

16




3.0 REQUIRED DATA AND INFORMATION

The District Bylaws and Management Plan require a number of specific items to be included in
the Annual Report. This information is included in the following subsections of the Annual
Report.

3.1 Aquifer Status

FY 2016 began in a status of No Drought following a very wet 2015 summer. Those summer rains
augmented a trend which began back in September 2014 when water levels began to rise after
above-average rainfall. Steady recharge continued to increase aquifer water levels as well as
Barton Springs flow. In January 2015, the Board updated the drought status from Stage II Alarm
Drought to No Drought. This change has remained in effect throughout FY 2016 as Edwards water
levels have continued to rise. To note, recent measurements indicate the beginning of a decline
starting October 11, 2016.

An overall wet FY 2016 produced long periods of recharge, resulting in the second highest water
level elevation for the District’s Edwards Aquifer drought index well, the Lovelady Monitor Well.
Water levels peaked on October 5, 2016 at 545.8 ft-msl, second to the 547.2 ft-msl recorded on
June 2, 1992. The Lovelady Monitor Well has recorded data since 1949,

Almost mirrering the rejuvenating effects of 2015, periods of heavy rainfall in FY 2016 have
continued to boost the Edwards Aquifer. For close comparison, total rainfall for 2015, measured
at Camp Mabry, was 597, and 2016 is coming in at a close 55.”

3.2 Grant Programs

The District continued its ongoing initiatives associated with development of alternative water
supplies for the District and its region throughout FY 2016. On January 28, 2015, the District
submitted an application to the TWDB Board for a Regional Facility Planning Grant to assess the
saline Edwards Aquifer as a potential water supply. The District was awarded grant funding in
the amount of $240,000 to support the District’s grant project. The contract with TWDB for the
grant project was approved by the Board and executed on August 27, 2015. After selection of
Carollo Engineers as a subcontractor for the grant project, a kickoff meeting was held on February
25, 2016. A major portion of Category A of the project was the drilling and installation of a
multiport monitor well near Creedmoor about a mile east of the fresh/saline water interface. The
well was completed near the end of August 2016. Sampling and testing of the well was done in
November 2016.

The District applied for grant funding from Rider 25 approved in the appropriations bill in the 84
Legislative session (HB1) for a feasibility and demonstration project for alternative water supplies
available only through GCDs. However, the District was not awarded any funding from this grant
program.
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3.3 Professional Services

The District expended $140,649 for professional services in FY 2016. This amount included legal
fees of $114,087 for general counsel support provided by Bickerstaff, Heath, Delgado & Acosta
LLP of Austin. These fees included involvement of the District and its attorneys in the redistricting
process and annexation of new shared territory.

There were no legal services associated uniquely with grant projects as grant-billable costs, as the
grant project just got underway in August.

Additional professional services for FY 2016 also reported in the above amount include the
District’s third party retirement plan administrator, The Standard, for $16,091.

The District retained Montemayor Britton Bender PC early in 2016 to perform its annual financial
audit for FY 2015 (as the previous auditor quit doing governmental entity audits), and also for FY
2016. The fees for these professional services were $9,000 for FY 2015 and $11,000 for FY 2016,
and are also included in the professional services total above.

Not included in the professional services total above, the District expended $2,000 for the lobbying
services of Sledge Law & Public Strategies for the 84th Legislative Session. The District has now
changed the timing of when legislative issues are addressed from a biennial expense to an ongoing
expense according to the new term of agreement dated July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018, being
a flat-fee structure bifurcated between legislative session months and legislative interim months
spread across 24 months. During legislative months — November of even-numbered years through
June of odd-numbered years, the fee will be $4,000 per month. During legislative interim months
~ July of odd-numbered years through October of even-numbered years, the fee will be $1,000 per
month. So one year there will be $36,000 in legislative expenses, and the following year there will
be §12,000 in legislative expenses.

These professional services do not include the contracted labor that comprises programmatic
support to various team initiatives and that is budgeted as part of the individual team budgets.

3.4  Capital Projects

The District completed one small capital project in FY 2016 that remodeled the library area for
$5,000. Also there was need for exterior fence replacement for $4,949.

3.5 Financial Report

As authorized in the District Bylaws, the Board utilizes the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust
Company (commonly referred to as “TexPool”) as a depository for its funds not required by its
current operations. There are several built-in controls and safeguards in the TexPool account
mechanisms. The District has established and maintains funds in several TexPool accounts to
further minimize risk and to partition funds designated for certain potential uses. To facilitate
payments and timely deposits, the District also maintains both checking and payroll accounts with
Citibank (now transitioned to BB&T), which are FDIC-insured. Monies are moved electronically
between these accounts and the TexPool accounts, generally keeping funds not required by current
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operations in TexPool, and therefore the cash balances in the operating bank accounts as small as
prudently feasible. The District has no additional monetary investments other than its cash fund
accounts.

End-of-the-year cash and account balances and an independent assessment of financial controls
will be found in the Annual Audit Report, to be included here as Appendix A, upon completion of
the financial audit,

3.6 Evaluation of District’s Long-Range Plan Pursuant To §36.1071
3.6.1 Background

Texas Water Code §36.1071 requires all GCDs to establish and maintain a long-range
comprehensive plan for groundwater management in the District. This long-range plan is a ten-
year plan called the District Management Plan. The Management Plan must be reviewed, revised
as necessary, readopted, and reapproved at least once each five years. Under the code provisions,
all GCDs are required to assess progress quantitatively toward the objectives in their prevailing
Management Plan at least annually; this assessment is summarized in the following Section 3.6.2
and elaborated in Appendix B of this Annual Report.

3.6.2 Board Evaluation of Objectives and Progress Assessment

Section 2 of this report highlighted some activities for each of the operational teams. A more
comprehensive and detailed listing of the activities of the District is included in Appendix B, which
was prepared by the staff to assist the Board’s evaluation of the progress made in FY 2016 toward
the goals, objectives, and performance standards identified in the prevailing District Management
Plan.

On November 17, 2016, the Board reviewed the information in Appendix B, discussed its
conformance with the plan objectives and their subsidiary performance standards, and then took
action to evaluate progress made by the District toward these strategic objectives, as specified in
the metrics for each of the objectives. Following a proper motion and second, and discussion in
a properly noticed Open Meeting, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the progress
toward each and all objectives in FY 2016 as being satisfactory, and directed the staff to include a
record of these actions and their basis in this Annual Report. That record and the basis for that
decision-making are included as Appendix B.
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APPENDIX A

Independent Annual Financial Audit Report

(Board-approved December 15, 2016)
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APPENDIX B

Assessment of Progress toward Management Plan Objectives

(Board-approved November 17, 2016)
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Item 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

c. Discussion and possible action related to adoption of
Desired Future Conditions (DFCs) for Groundwater
Management Area (GMA) 9.
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Barton Springs
Edwards Aquifer

CONSERVATION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: AQUITFER SCIENCE

SUBJECT: GMA-9 DESIRED FUTURE CONDITIONS
DATE: 12/9/2016

This memo and is meant to serve as a background information for the Board’s consideration to
adopt the appropriate GMA9 DFC described in the Explanatory Report that was officially

accepted as administratively complete on November 23, 2016 by the TWDB.

¢ On September 28, 2015 (at Dripping Springs) GMA9 reviewed all elements and factors of the
drafi Explanatory Report. Proposed DFCs and non-relevant aquifers were voted on and

approved at this meeting;

* GMA 9 DFCs and Explanatory Report were mailed by the GMA9 Chairman to the TWDB on

April 25, 2016.

The relevant aquifer for the District is the Trinity Aquifer. The DFC for this aquifer states to
allow for an increase in average drawdown of approximately 30 feet through 2070 relative to

conditions in 2008.

The TWDB will provide the Modeled Available Groundwater (MAG) for each aquifer within 180

days of November 23, 2016.






Texas Water
Development Board

P.O. Box 13231, 1700 N. Congress Ave
Austin, TX 78711-3231, www twdb texas gov
Phone (512) 463-7847, Fax (512) 475-2053

November 23, 2016

Mr. Ron Fieseler

General Manager

Blanco-Pedernales Groundwater Conservation District
601 West Main

Johnson City, TX 78636-1516

Dear Mr. Fieseler:

The purpose of this letter is to notify you that the submitted desired future conditions
explanatory report and other materials required by Texas Water Code §36.108(d-3) are
administratively complete in accordance with 31 Texas Administrative Code §356.33.

On April 26, 2016, we received the explanatory report and other materials for desired
future conditions adopted by groundwater conservation district representatives in
Groundwater Management Area 9. Your submission included: (1) the explanatory
report and the adopted desired future conditions for the relevant aquifers; (2) the
signed resolution; (3) the postings, minutes, and voting record for the public meeting
in which the desired future conditions were adopted; and (4) contact information for
the representative of the groundwater management area.

We will provide you with modeled available groundwater values for these aquifers no
later than 180 days after the date of this letter in accordance with 31 Texas
Administrative Code §356.35. Please contact Dr. Rima Petrossian of my staff at (512)
936-2420 or rj jan ] if you have any questions.

Exefutive Administrator

cw/oenc:  Matt Nelson, Water Supply & Infrastructure
Larry French, Groundwater Division
Dr. Rima Petrossian, Groundwater Technical Assistance
Temple McKinnon, Water Use, Projections & Planning

Qur Mission : Board Members

To provide leadership, Information, education, and | Bech Bruun, Chairman | Kathleen Jackson, Board Member | Peter Lake, Board Member
support for planning, financial assistance, and -
outreach for the conservation and responsible -
development of water for Texas ©  Jeff Walker, Executive Administrator
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Item 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

d. Discussion and possible action related to approval of an
access agreement with the Hays County Emergency Services
District No. 4) (dba Wimberley Volunteer Fire Department) to
install and collect data from a multiport monitor well on their

property.

101



102



Item 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

e. Discussion and possible action on consideration of a
District legislative agenda for the upcoming 85™ Legislative
session.
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10.

TWCA Groundwater Committee Consensus Bills

Advisory Committee Bill — The proposed bill adds permissive authority for Groundwater
Management Areas (GMAs) to add voting or nonvoting members to the GMA. The bill also
requires the appointment of a joint planning advisory committee. Initial members include the
chair of each regional water planning group located in the GMA, with additional members
appointed by the GMA to represent other interest groups.

Direct Deposit Bill — The proposed bill authorizes direct deposit payroll, online bill pay etc., for
groundwater conservation districts (GCDs).

Proposed Export Amendments — The proposed bill amends export permit provisions by altering
and clarifying the factors to be considered by a groundwater district when issuing an export
permit or adding an export condition to an operating permit and providing for automatic
extension of an expired export permit or condition to conform to the term of the related operating
permit. (export extension provision also as a stand-alone bill)

Export Extension Provision — The proposed bill provides for autamatic extension of an expired
export permit or condition to conform to the term of the related operating permit (part of the
Proposed Export Amendmaents Bill).

Appeal Party Status — The proposed bill clarifies conditions under which a person denied party
status to participate in a permitting contested case may appeal.

Application Administrative Completeness — The propased bill limits the list of items a GCD can
require for a permit application to what is already listed in statute as well as other information
included in a district rule. The bill also states that a GCD may not require additional information
for a determination of administrative completeness,

Considering Registered Wells in Permitting — The proposed bill provides for consideration by
GCDs of impacts on registered exempt wells in permitting decisions {also in proposed export bill).
DFC Adoption Process — The proposed bill would require that the next set of desired future
conditions (DFCs) be adopted by each district within the GMA by January 5, 2022 (deadline for
next State Water Plan), and every 5 years thereafter. The hill also includes other cleanup
provisions related to DFC adoption process.

Groundwater as Alternate Supply — The proposed bill provides for notice to a GCD where a permit
applicant proposes to use groundwater as an alternate source if the groundwater to be utilized is
within the GCD's jurisdiction. If ultimately TCEQ's permit includes groundwater as an alternate
source, the bill provides that it be expressly stated that the permit does not authorize the
withdrawal of groundwater.

Modeled Sustainable Definition — The proposed bill adds to Chapter 36 a definition of “modeled
sustainable groundwater pumping” to mean the maximum amount of groundwater that the
executive administrator determines may be produced from an aquifer on an annual basis in
perpetuity using the best available science. The bill also adds modeled sustainable groundwater
pumping to the list of hydrological conditions considered by GMAs in developing DFCs.

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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1. Advisory Committee Bill

8/AN ACT
relating to the addition of voting and non-voting representatives and
the establishment of advisory committees in the joint planning process
in groundwater management areas.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Subsection (c), Section 16.053, Water Code, is amended
to read as follows:

(c) No later than 60 days after the designation of the regions
under Subsection (b), the board shall designate representatives within
each regional water planning area to serve as the initial coordinating
body for planning. The initial coordinating body may then designate
additional representatives to serve on the regional water planning
group. The initial coordinating body shall designate additional
representatives if necessary to ensure adequate representation from the
interests comprising that region, including the public, counties,

municipalities, industries, agricultural interests, environmental

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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interests, small businesses, electric generating utilities, river
authorities, water districts, and water utilities. The regional water
planning group shall maintain adequate representation from those
interests. In addition, the groundwater conservation districts located
in each management area, as defined by Section 36.00l, located in the
regional water planning area shall appoint one representative of a
groundwater conservation district located in the management area and in
the regional water planning area to serve on the regional water planning

group. In addition, each regional water planning group chairperson, or

their designee, shall, for each management area as defined by Section

36.001 that is located in whole or in part in the regional water planning

area, sServe as a representative on a joint planning advisory committee,

as described under Section 36.1081(c). In addition, representatives of

the board, the Parks and Wildlife Department, and the Department of
Agriculture shall serve as ex cofficio members of each regional water
planning group.

SECTION 2. Subsections ({(a), (c), (d=3) and (d-4) of Sec. 36.108,

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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Water Code, is amended by amending to read as follows:
{a) In this section:

(1) "Development board” means the Texas Water Development

Board.

{2) “District representative” means the presiding officer
or the presiding officer’s designee for any district located wholly or
partly in the management area.

(3) “Non-district representative: means any additional

voting or non-voting representatives added by written resolution

adopted by a two-thirds vote of the district representatives prescribing

the exact scope of voting authority for any representative added.

{c} The district representatives and non-district representatives

shall meet as a groundwater management area planning group at least

annually to conduct Jjoint planning [withthe—ether-distriets] in the
management area and to review the management plans, the accomplishments
of the management area, and proposals to adopt new or amend existing

desired future conditions. In reviewing the management plans, the

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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groundwater management area planning group [e&istriets] shall consider:

{1} the goals of each management plan and its impact on
planning throughout the management area;

{(2) the effectiveness of the measures established by each
district's management plan for conserving and protecting groundwater
and preventing waste, and the effectiveness of these measures in the
management area generally:

{(3) any other matters that the boards consider relevant to
the protection and conservation of groundwater and the prevention of
waste in the management area; and

{(4) the degree to which each management plan achieves the
desired future conditions established during the joint planning
process.

(d-2) The desired future conditions proposed under Subsection
(d) must provide a balance between the highest practicable level of
groundwater production and the conservation, preservation, protection,

recharging, and prevention of waste of groundwater and control of

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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subsidence in the management area. This subsection does not prohibit
the establishment of desired future conditions that provide for the
reasonable long-term management of groundwater resources consistent
with the management goals under Secticn 36.1071(a). The desired future

conditions proposed under Subsection (d}) must be approved by a two-

thirds vote of all the voting members [eistriet represemtatives] for

distribution to the districts in the management area. A period of not
less than 90 days for public comments begins on the day the proposed
desired future conditions are mailed to the districts. During the
public comment period and after posting notice as required by Section
36.063, each district shall hold a public hearing on any proposed
desired future conditions relevant to that district. During the public
comment period, the district shall make available in its office a copy
of the proposed desired future conditions and any supporting materials,
such as the documentation of factors considered under Subsection (d)
and groundwater availability model run results. After the public

hearing, the district shall compile for consideration at the next joint

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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planning meeting a summary of relevant comments received, any suggested
revisions to the proposed desired future conditions, and the basis for
the revisions.

{d-3) After the earlier of the date on which all the districts
have submitted their district summaries or the expiration of the public

comment period under Subsection (d-2), the groundwater management area

planning group [eistrict repregentatiwves] shall reconvene to review the

reports, consider any district's suggested revisions to the proposed

desired future conditions, and finally adopt the desired future
conditions for the management area. The desired future conditions must

be adopted as a resolution by a two-thirds vote of all the wvoting

members [eistriet representatives]. The groundwater management area
planning group [distriet—representatives] shall produce a desired

future conditions explanatory report for the management area and submit
to the development board and each district in the management area proof
that notice was posted for the joint planning meeting, a copy of the

resolution, and a copy of the explanatory report. The report must:

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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(1) identify each desired future condition;
(2) provide the policy and technical justifications for
each desired future condition;
{3} include documentation that the factors under Subsection
{(d) were considered by the districts and a discussion of how the adopted
desired future conditions impact each factor;
(4) 1list other desired future condition options considered,
if any, and the reasons why those options were not adopted; and
{5) discuss reasons why recommendations made by advisory
committees and relevant public comments received by the districts were
or were not incorporated into the desired future conditions.
SECTION 3. Section 36.1081, Water Code, is amended by amending
Subsection (b) and adding Subsection (c) to read as follows:
(b) During the joint planning process under Section 36.108, the

groundwater management area planning group shall [istriet

representatives—may] appoint a [ard—ecenvere—monveting] joint planning

advisory committee [subeommittecs whoe represent secialr gevernmental -

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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envirehmental—eor—economie—interests] to assist in the development of

desired future conditions. The advisory committee membership shall

consist of persons appointed to represent the interests 1listed in

Section 16.033(c). The initial members of the advisory committee shall

be the chairperson of each regional water planning group located in

whole or in part in the groundwater management area, or their designee.

The groundwater management area planning group shall designate

additional members to serve on the advisory committee to ensure

representation of the interests listed in Sec. 16.053(c), to the extent

they are able to identify qualified persons willing to serve. Advisory

committee members are not required to reside in the groundwater

management area or of the regional water planning area. Upon request by

the groundwater management area planning group, the Texas Water

Development Board shall provide assistance in soliciting additional

persons to be considered to serve on the advisory committee. Upon

request by a majority of the initial members, the groundwater management

area planning group shall provide public notice in the manner set forth

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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under Section 36.108(e) that describes the purpose of the advisory

committee and apprises interested persons of the opportunity to submit

nominations for membership on the advisory committee and a method for

submitting those nominations to the initial members for consideration.

Any vacancy on the advisory committee shall be filled by appointment in

the same manner as the initial appointments. The advisory committee

members may adopt written bylaws to govern the affairs of the advisory

committee to perform its purposes. The Texas Water Development Board

shall provide technical assistance to the advisory committee upon

request. An advisory committee created under this section is not subject

to the provisions of Chapters 551 and 552, Government Code. At least

once during every five-year period for the development and adoption of

desired future conditions under Section 36.108B and not less than three

years nor more than four vyears prior to the deadline for adoption of

the desired future conditions, the groundwater management area planning

group shall schedule a public meeting for the purpose of receiving

recommendations for desired future conditions from the advisory

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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committee,. The groundwater management area planning group shall

coordinate with the advisory committee on the scheduling of the public

meeting.

SECTION 4. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as provided
by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this Act does not
receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this Act takes effect

September 1, 2017.

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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2. Direct Deposit Bill

AN ACT
relating to a groundwater conservation district’s use of electronic
fund transfers.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
SECTION 1. Subsections (b) and (¢c), Sec. 36.151, Water Code, are
amended to read as follows:

(b) Disbursements, other than federal reserve wire transfers or

electronic fund transfers, shall be signed by at least two directors,

except the board may by resolution allow certain employees of the
district, or a combination of employees and directors, to sign

disbursements on behalf of the board. The board may authorize payroll

disbursements by electronic direct deposit.

{c) The board may by resclution allow disbursements to be

transferred by federal reserve wire system or by electronic means to

accounts in the name of the district or accounts not in the name of the

district.

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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SECTION 2. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as provided
by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this Act does not
receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this Act takes effect

September 1, 2017.

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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3. Proposed Export Amendments

AN ACT

relating to exports of groundwater from a groundwater conservation

district.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Section 36.113(d), Water Code, is amended to read as

follows:

{d) This subsection does not apply to the renewal of an
operating permit issued under Section 36.1145. Before granting or
denying a permit, or a permit amendment issued in accordance with
Section 36.1146, the district shall consider whether:

(1) the application conforms to the requirements
prescribed by this chapter and is accompanied by the prescribed fees;

(2) the projected effect of the proposed production [use

efwater] unreasonably affects aquifer conditions, depletion,

subsidence, existing groundwater and surface water resources, [e¥]

existing permit holders, or registered wells that are exempt from the

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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requirements to obtain a permit under the rules of the district or

this chapter;

{3} the proposed use of water is dedicated to any
beneficial use;

(4) the proposed use of water is consistent with the
district's approved management plan;

(5) if the well will be located in the Hill Country
Priority Groundwater Management Area, the proposed use of water from
the well is wholly or partly to provide water to a pond, lake, or
reservoir to enhance the appearance of the landscape:

(6) the applicant has agreed to avoid waste and achieve
water conservation; and

(7) the applicant has agreed that reasonable diligence
will be used to protect groundwater quality and that the applicant
will follow well plugging guidelines at the time of well closure.

SECTION 2. Section 36.122, Water Code, is amended to read as

follows:

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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Sec. 36.122, EXPORT [ZRANSFER] OF GROUNDWATER OUT OF DISTRICT.
(a) 1If an application for a permit or an amendment to a permit under
Section 36.113 proposes the export [&xamsfer] of groundwater outside
of a district's boundaries, the district may also consider the
provisions of this section in determining whether to grant or deny
the permit or permit amendment.

{(b) A district may promulgate rules requiring a person to
obtain a permit or an amendment to a permit under Section 36.113 from
the district [fexr—the—transfer—ef] to export groundwater [eut—ef—the
eistedet] to:

(1) increase, on or after March 2, 1997, the amount of
groundwater to be [tramsferred] exported under a continuing
arrangement in effect before that date; or

(2) [+xansfer] export groundwater [ewt—ef—the—distriet] on
or after March 2, 1997, under a new arrangement.

{c} Except as provided in Section 36.113(e), the district may

not impose more restrictive permit conditions on exporters

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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[Examrspoxrters] than the district imposes on existing in-district
users.

(d) The district may impose a reasonable fee for processing an
application under this section. The fee may not exceed fees that the
district imposes for processing other applications under Section
36.113. An application filed under [te—eempdy—with]| this section
shall be considered and processed under the same procedures as other
applications for permits under Section 36.113 and shall be combined
with applications filed to obtain a permit [ferimp-district—water
wse] under Section 36.113 from the same applicant.

(e} The district may impose an export fee or surcharge using
one of the following methods:

(1) a fee negotiated between the district and the
exporter;

(2) a rate not to exceed the equivalent of the
district's tax rate per hundred dollars of valuation for each

thousand gallons of water exported from the district or 2.5 cents per

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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thousand gallons of water, if the district assesses a tax rate of
less than 2.5 cents per hundred dollars of valuation; or
(3) for a fee-based district, a 50 percent surcharge, in
addition to the district's production fee, for water exported from
the district.
(f) In reviewing a proposed [&ramsfer—ef] groundwater export
[eut—efthedistrier], the district shall consider:

{1) the projected availability and demand for groundwater

[of—water] in the district and the projected availability and demand

for water in the proposed receiving area during the period for which

the water supply is requested; and

{2} [Ehe—predectodcffces—of the propesed—transfer——on

[£3+] the latest approved state water plan, regional water

plan and [appreved] district management plan.

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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{(g) The district may not deny a permit based on the fact that
the applicant seeks to export [&ransfexr] groundwater outside of the
district but may limit a permit issued under this section if
conditions in Subsection (f) warrant the limitation, subject to
Subsection {(c).

(h} The [Ir—addition—teo—eonditions—provided by Section36-1131+
£he] permit shall specify:

(1) the amount of water that may be exported from

[Exarsferredeut—of] the district; and

{2} the period for which the water may be exported
[Exansferred].

(i) The period specified by Subsection (h) (2) shall be:

(1) at least three years if construction of a conveyance
system has not been initiated prior to the issuance of the permit;
or

(2) at least 30 years if construction of a conveyance

system has been initiated prior to the issuance of the permit.
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(i} A term under Subsection (i) {1) shall automatically be
extended to the terms agreed to under Subsection (i) (2) if
construction of a conveyance system is begun before the expiration of

the initial term. A term under Subsections (i} {1l), (i) {2} or this

subsection shall automatically be extended before expiration to a

term not shorter than the term of the then-current operating permit

issued for production of the water to be exported, and for each

additional period for which the then-current operating permit is

renewed or remains in effect in accordance with Section 36.1145 or

Section 36.1146. A permit automatically extended under this

subsection shall continue to be subject to all terms and conditions

contained in the permit prior to automatic extension.

{k} The amount of groundwater actually exported under a permit

issued under this section may not exceed the amount of groundwater

authorized to be produced under one or more associated operating

permits, if the district requires a separate operating permit to

authorize groundwater production associated with the export of
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groundwater. A permit issued under this section may allow an amount

for export that exceeds the amount authorized to be produced under

operating permits associated with the export permit.
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: S g ] ' ; L]
[4m3+] A district may not prohibit the export of groundwater if

the purchase was in effect on or before June 1, 1997.

PO . v 1 : : ] .

(m) (+p+]) Subsection {e) does not apply to a district that is

collecting an export fee or surcharge on March 1, 2001.

[ Lond " . " . ; o
. . 1 5 e ]

SECTION 2. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as provided

by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this Act does not
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receive the vote necessary for immediate effect,

September 1, 2017.
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4. Export Extension Provision
Proposed Act to Amend to Section 36.122 of the Texas Water Code

1. Texas Water Code Chapter 36, Subchapter D, Section 122, Subsection (j), is
amended as follows:

Section 122. Transfer of Groundwater Qut of District

4] A term under Subsection (i){1) shall automatically be extended to the term
agreed to under Subsection (i){2) if construction of a conveyance system is begun before

the expiration of the initial term. A term under Subsections (i){1), (i}(2) or this subsection

shall automatically be extended before expiration to a term not shorter than the term of

the then-current operating permit issued for production of the water to be exported, and

for each additional period for which the then-current operating permit is renewed or

remains_in_effect in accordance with Section 36.1145 or Section 36.1146. A permit

automatically extended under this subsection shall continue to be subject to all terms and

conditions contained in the permil prior to automatic extension.

2. Changes made by this act shall apply to any term under Texas Water Code
Chapter 36, Subchapter D, Section 122, Subsections (i)(1), (i)(2), or (j) that expires after

September 1, 2017.
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5. Appeal Party Status

AN ACT
relating to the right to appeal a groundwater conservation district
decision on party status.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE QF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
SECTION 1. Section 36.251, Water Code, is amended to read as
follows:

Sec. 36.251. SUIT AGAINST DISTRICT. (a}) A person, firm,
corporation, or association of persons affected by and dissatisfied
with any rule or order made by a district, including an appeal of a
decision on a permit application, is entitled to file a suit against
the district or its directors to challenge the validity of the law,
rule, or order.

{b) Only the district, the applicant, and parties to a contested
case hearing may participate in an appeal of a decision on the
application that was the subject of that contested case hearing. A

person that was denied party status to participate in a contested case
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hearing may only appeal the district’s decision to deny party status,

and may file suit only after a final decision has been issued by the

district on the permit application and after administrative remedies

under section 36.412 of this Chapter have been exhausted. An appeal of

a decision related to [er] a permit application must include the

applicant as a necessary party.

SECTION 2. Sec. 36.412, subsections (a) and (b), Water Code, are
amended to read as follows:

(a} An applicant in a contested or uncontested hearing on an

application, [e®] a party to a contested hearing, or a person that has

been denied party status by a district, may administratively appeal a

decision of the board [ern] related to a permit or permit amendment
application by requesting written findings and conclusions not later
than the 20th day after the date of the becard’'s decision.

(b} On receipt of a timely written request, the board shall make
written findings and conclusions regarding a decision of the board on

a permit or permit amendment application., The board shall provide
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certified copies of the findings and conclusions to the person who
regquested them, and to each designated party, not later than the 35th
day after the date the board receives the request. A party to a contested

case hearing, or a person denied party status by a district, may request

a rehearing before the board not later than the 20th day after the date
the board issues the findings and conclusions.
SECTION 3. Sec. 36.413, subsections (b) and (c), Water Code, is
amended to read as follows:
(b) Except as provided by Subsection (c), an applicant (e¥], a

party to a contested hearing, or a person that has been denied party

status to participate in a contested case hearing, may file a suit

against the district under Section 36.251 to appeal the [&] decision

on a permit or permit amendment application, or the decision to deny

party status, as applicable, not later than the 60th day after the

date on which the decision on the application becomes final.

(c) A [Ar—applicant or o party to—a—contestedhearing may not

£ile] suit against [+he] a district to appeal a decision related to a
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permit application, or to deny party status, may not be filed under

Section 36.251 if a request for rehearing was not timely filed [ewm

+ime] under Section 36.412.

SECTION 4. Sec. 36.4051(d), Water Code, is amended to read as
follows:
(d) An applicant may, not later than the 20th day after the

date the board issues an order granting an uncontested [&he]

application, demand a contested case hearing if the order:

{1} includes special conditions that were not part of the
application as finally submitted; or

{2} grants a maximum amount of groundwater production that
is less than the amount requested in the application.

SECTION 4. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as provided
by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this Act does not
receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this Act takes effect

September 1, 2017.
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6. Application Administrative
Completeness

_+B. Ho,

AN ACT

relating to administrative completeness requirements for permit and
permit amendment applications for groundwater conservation
districts.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTION 1. Section 36.113(c), Water Code, is amended to read
as follows:

{c} A district may only require that the following be
included in the permit or permit amendment application, as

applicable under the rules of the district:

{1} the name and mailing address of the applicant and the
cWwner of the land on which the well will be located;

(2) if the applicant is other than the owner of the praoperty,
documentation establishing the applicable authority to construct
and operate a well for the proposed use;

(3) a statement of the nature and purpose of the proposed use
and the amount of water to be used for each purpose;

{4) a water conservaticn plan or a declaration that the
applicant will comply with the district's management plan;

{5} the location of each wsll and the estimated rate at which
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water will be withdrawn;

(6) a water well closure plan or a declaration that the
applicant will comply with well plugging guidelines and report
closure to the commission; and

{7) a drought contingency plan; and=

{8} other information included in a rule of the district that

specifies what information must be included in an application for a

determination of administrative completeness, which information

must be reasonably related fto an issue that a district is

authorized to consider under this chapter.

SECTION 2. Section 36.114{(h), Water Code, is amended to read

as follows:

(h) An application is administratively complete if it
contains the application—reqguires information set forth 4w

aeeardange—with under Sectieons 36.113 and 36.1131. A district may

not require additional information to be included in an application

for a determination of administrative completeness.

SECTION 3. This Act takes effect September 1, 2017.
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7. Considering Registered
Wells in Permitting

AN ACT
relating to the criteria considered by a groundwater conservation
districts before granting or denying a permit.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
SECTION 1. Subsection (d), Section 36.113, Water Code, 1is
amended to read as follows:

{d) This subsection deoes not apply to the renewal of an
operating permit issued under Section 36.1145. Before granting or
denying a permit, or a permit amendment issued in accordance with
Section 36.1146, the district shall consider whether:

(1) the application conforms to the requirements
prescribed by this chapter and is accompanied by the prescribed fees;

(2) the proposed use of water unreasonably affects
existing groundwater and surface water resocurces, [ex]existing permit

holders, or registered wells that are exempt from the requirement to

cbtain a permit under the rules of the district or this chapter;

(3} the proposed wuse of water 1is dedicated to any
beneficial use;

(4} the proposed use of water is consistent with the
district's approved management plan;

(S) if the well will be located in the Hill Country
Priority Groundwater Management Area, the proposed use of water from
the well is wholly or partly to provide water to a pond, lake, or

reservoir to enhance the appearance of the landscape;

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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(6} the applicant has agreed to aveoid waste and achieve
water conservation; and
(7) the applicant has agreed that reasonable diligence
will be used to protect groundwater quality and that the applicant
will follow well plugging guidelines at the time of well closure.
SECTION 2. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as
provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this Act
does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this Act

takes effect September 1, 2017.
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8. DFC Adoption Process

AN ACT
relating to the deadlines for establishing desired future conditions.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
SECTION 1. Sec. 16.053(e} is amended to read as follows:
(e) Each regional water planning group shall submit to the
development board a regional water plan that:
(1) is consistent with the guidance principles for the state
water plan adopted by the development board under Section 16.051(d);
{2) provides information based on data provided or approved
by the development board in a format consistent with the guidelines
provided by the development board under Subsection (d):
(2-a) 1is consistent with the desired future conditions
adopted under Section 36.108 for the relevant aquifers located in the

regional water planning area as of the most recent deadline for [date]

the board to adopt the [mest—rxecentiy—adepted-a] state water plan under

Section 16.051 or, at the option of the regional water planning group,

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD
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established subsequent to the adoption of the most recent plan;
provided, however, that if no groundwater conservation district exists
within the area of the regional water planning group, the regional water
planning group shall determine the supply of groundwater for regional
planning purposes; the Texas Water Development Board shall review and
approve, prior to inclusion in the regicnal water plan, that the
groundwater supply for the regional planning group without a groundwater
conservation district in its area is physically compatible, using the
board's groundwater availability models, with the desired future
conditions adopted under Section 36.108 for the relevant aquifers in
the groundwater management area that are regulated by groundwater
conservation districts;
{3) identifies:

(p) each source of water supply in the regional water
planning area, including information supplied by the executive
administrator on the amount of modeled available groundwater in

accordance with the guidelines provided by the development board under
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Subsections (d} and (f);

(B) factors specific to each source of water supply to
be considered in determining whether to initiate a drought response;

(C) actions to be taken as part of the response; and

(D) existing major water infrastructure facilities that
may be used for interconnections in the event of an emergency shortage
of water;

(4) has specific provisions for water management strategies
to be used during a drought of record;

{5} includes but is not limited to consideration of the
following:

() any existing water or drought planning efforts
addressing all or a portion of the region and potential impacts on
public health, safety, or welfare in this state;

(B) approved groundwater <conservation district
management plans and other plans submitted under Section 16.054;

{C) all potentially feasible water management
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strategies, including but not limited to improved conservation, reuse,
and management of existing water supplies, conjunctive use, acquisition
of available existing water supplies, and development of new water
supplies;

{D) protection of existing water rights in the region:;

(E) opportunities for and the benefits of developing
regional water supply facilities or providing regional management of
water supply facilities;

(F) appropriate provision for environmental water needs
and for the effect of upstream development on the bays, estuaries, and
arms of the Gulf of Mexico and the effect of plans on navigation;

{G) provisions in Section 11.085(k}{1l) if interbasin
transfers are contemplated;

{(H) voluntary transfer of water within the region using,
but not limited to, regional water banks, sales, leases, options,
subordination agreements, and financing agreements;

{I} emergency transfer of water under Section 11.139,
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including information on the part of each permit, certified filing, or
certificate of adjudication for nonmunicipal use in the region that may
be transferred without causing unreasonable damage to the property of
the nonmunicipal water rights holder; and

[(J) opportunities for and the benefits of developing
large-scale desalination facilities for marine seawater that serve
local or regional entities;]

(J) opportunities for and the benefits of developing
large-scale desalination facilities for seawater or brackish
groundwater that serve local or regional brackish groundwater
production zones identified and designated under Section 16.060 (b) (5);

{6) identifies river and stream segments of unique ecological
value and sites of unigue value for the construction of reservoirs that
the regional water planning group recommends for protection under
Section 16.051;

{7) assesses the impact of the plan on unique river and

stream segments identified in Subdivision (6} if the regional water
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planning group or the legislature determines that a site of unique
ecological value exists;
(8) describes the impact of proposed water projects on water
guality; and
(9) includes information on:
(A) projected water use and conservation in the regional
water planning area; and
(B} the implementation of state and regional water plan
projects, including water conservation strategies, necessary to meet
the state's projected water demands.
SECTION 2. Section 36.108, subsections (d), {(d-2), {(d-3), and (d-

4), Water Code, are amended to read as follows:

(d) Not later than May 1, 2021 [ESeptember—3+—2636+] and every

five vyears thereafter, the districts shall consider groundwater
availability mecdels and other data or information for the management
area and shall propose for adoption desired future conditions for the

relevant aquifers within the management area. Before voting on the
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proposed desired future conditions of the aquifers under Subsection (d-
2}, the districts shall consider:

(1) aquifer uses or conditions within the management area,
including conditions that differ substantially from one geographic area
to another;

{2) the water supply needs and water management strategies
included in the state water plan;

{3) hydrological conditions, including for each aquifer in
the management area the total estimated recoverable storage as provided
by the executive administrator, and the average annual recharge,
inflows, and discharge;

{4) other environmental impacts, including impacts on spring
flow and other interactions between groundwater and surface water:;

{5) the impact on subsidence;

{6) socioeconomic impacts reasonably expected to occur;

(7) the impact on the interests and rights in private

property, including ownership and the rights of management area
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landowners and their lessees and assigns in groundwater as recognized
under Section 36.002;

(8) the feasibility of achieving the desired future
condition; and

{9) any other information relevant to the specific desired
future conditions.

{d-2) The desired future conditions propeosed under Subsectiocon

{d} must provide a balance between the highest practicable level of
groundwater production and the conservation, preservation, protection,
recharging, and prevention of waste of groundwater and control of
subsidence in the management area. This subsection does not prohibit
the establishment of desired future conditions that provide for the
reasonable long-term management of groundwater resources consistent
with the management goals under Section 36.1071(a). The desired future
conditions proposed under Subsection (d) must be approved by a two-
thirds vote of all the district representatives for distribution to the

districts in the management area. A period of not less than 90 days
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for public comments begins on the day the proposed desired future
conditions are mailed to the districts. During the public comment
period and after posting notice as required by Section 36.063, each
district shall hold a public hearing on any proposed desired future
conditions relevant to that district. During the public comment period,
the district shall make available in its office a copy of the proposed
desired future conditions and any supporting materials, such as the
documentation of factors considered wunder Subsection (d) and

groundwater availability model run results. After the close of the

public comment period [kearing], the district shall compile for

consideration at the next joint planning meeting a summary of relevant
comments received, any suggested revisions to the proposed desired
future conditions, and the basis for the revisions.

(d=-3) After [theearlier of the—date—on—which] all the districts

have submitted their district summaries [exr—theexpirationof the-publie
comment—period—under—Subsecstieon—{d-2}], the district representatives

shall reconvene to review the reports, consider any district's suggested

NOT APPROVED BY TWCA BOARD

145



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

TWCA Groundwater Committee Consensus Bills Page 42

revisions to the proposed desired future conditions, and finally adopt
the desired future conditions for the management area. The desired

future conditions must be approved, by [adepted—as—a] resolution, by a

two-thirds wvote of all the district representatives. The district
representatives shall produce a desired future conditions explanatory
report for the management area and submit to the development board and
each district in the management area proof that notice was posted for
the joint planning meeting, a copy of the resolution, and a copy of the
explanatory report. The report must:

(1) identify each desired future condition;

{2) provide the policy and technical justifications for
each desired future condition;

{3) include documentation that the factors under Subsection
(d) were considered by the districts and a discussion of how the adopted
desired future conditions impact each factor;

(4) list other desired future condition options considered,

if any, and the reasons why those options were not adopted; and
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(5) discuss reasons why recommendations made by advisory
committees and relevant public comments received by the districts were
or were not incorporated into the desired future conditions.

{d=-4) After [As—soen—as—possible after] a district receives

notification from the Texas Water Development Board that the desired

future conditions resolution and explanatory report approved under

Subsection (d-3) is administratively complete, the district shall adopt

the applicable desired future conditions in the resolution and report

no later than January 5, 2022 and every five years thereafter [&has

appty—te—the—disteict] .

SECTION 3. Subsection (d-5) of Sec. 36.108, Water Code, 1is
repealed.

SECTION 4. This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as provided
by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this Act does not
receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this Act takes effect

September 1, 2017.
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Water Committee on December 7th
Sec. 11.132. NOTICE. (a} Nolice shall be given to the persons who in the judgment of

the commission may be affected by an application, including those persons listed in Subdivision
(2), Subsection (d), of this section. The commission, on the motion of a commissioner or on the
request of the executive director or any affected person, shall hold a public hearing on the
application.

(b) Ifthe proposed use is for irrigation, the commission shall include in the notice a general
description of the location and area of the land to be irrigated.

(c) In the notice, the commission shall:

(1) state the name and address of the applicant;

(2) state the date the application was filed;

(3) state the purpose and extent of the proposed appropriation of water;

(4) identify the source of supply and the place where the water is to be stored or
taken or diverted from the source of supply;

(5) identify any proposed alternative source or sources of water, other than state
water;

(6) specify the time and location where the commission will consider the
application; and

(7) qgive any additional information the commission considers necessary.

(d) The commission may act on the application without holding a public hearing if:

(1) not less than 30 days before the date of action on the application by the
commission, the applicant has published the commission's notice of the application at least once
in a newspaper regularly published or circulated within the section of the state where the source
of water is located;

{2) not less than 30 days before the date of action on the application by the
commission, the commission mails a copy of the notice by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to:

(A) each claimant or appropriator of water from the source of water supply,
the record of whose claim or appropriation has been filed with the commission;
(B)_if the applicant proposes to utilize groundwater from a well or wells

located within a groundwater conservation district as_an alternative source of water, to each

groundwater conservation district with jurisdiction over the proposed groundwater production:;

and
(C} all navigation districts within the river basin concerned; and
(3) within 30 days after the date of the newspaper publication of the commission's
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notice, a public hearing has not been requested in writing by a commissioner, the executive
director, or an affected person who objects to the application.

(e) The inadvertent failure of the commission to mail a notice under Subdivision {2),
Subsection {d), of this section to a navigation district that is not a claimant or appropriator of water
does not prevent the commission's consideration of the application.

(f) If, on the date specified in the notice prescribed by Subsection {c) of this section, the
commission determines that a public hearing must be held, the matter shall be remanded for
hearing without the necessity of issuing further notice other than advising all parties of the time

and place where the hearing is to convene.

Sec. 11.135. ISSUANCE OF PERMIT. (a) On approval of an application, the
commission shall issue a permit to the applicant. The applicant's right to take and use water is
limited to the extent and purposes stated in the permit.

{b) The permit shall be in writing and attested by the seal of the commission, and it shall
contain substantially the following information:

(1) the name of the person to whom the permit is issued;

(2} the date the permit is issued,

(3) the date the original application was filed;

(4} the use or purpaose for which the appropriation is to be made;

(5) the amount or volume of water authorized to be appropriated for each purpose;
if use of the appropriated water is authorized for multiple purposes, the permit shall contain a
special condition limiting the total amount of water that may actually be diverted for all of the
purposes to the amount of water appropriated;

(6) a general description of the source of supply from which the appropriation is
proposed to be made_including any alternative source that is not state water;

(7) the time within which construction or work must begin and the time within which
it must be completed; and
(8) any other information the commission prescribes.
(c) If the appropriation is for irrigation, the commission shall also place in the permit a
description and statement of the approximate area of the land to be irrigated.
(d) If the alternative source is groundwater from a well or wells located within a

groundwater conservation district, the permit shall expressly state that the permit does not
authorize the withdrawal of groundwater.
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Sec. 11.143. USE OF WATER FROM EXEMPT DAM OR RESERVOIR FOR
NONEXEMPT PURPOSES. (a) The owner of a dam or reservoir exempted under Section
11.142(3) or (b) who desires to use water from the dam or reservoir for a purpose not described
by that subsection shall obtain a permit to do so. The owner may obtain a regular permit, a
seasonal permit, or a permit for a term of years. The owner may elect to obtain the permit by
proceeding under this section or under the other provisions of this chapter governing issuance of
permits.

(b) Ifthe applicant elects to proceed under this section, he shall submit to the commission
a sworn application, on a form furnished by the commission, containing the following information:;

{1) the name and post-office address of the applicant;

{2) the nature and purpose of the use and the amount of water to be used annually
for each purpose;

(3) the major watershed and the tributary (named or unnamed) on which the dam
or reservair is located;

(4) the county in which the dam or reservoir is located;

(5) the approximate distance and direction from the county seat of the county to
the location of the dam or reservoir;

(6) the survey or the portion of the survey on which the dam or reservoir is located
and, to the best of the applicant's knowledge and belief, the distance and direction of the midpoint
of the dam or reservoir from a corner of the survey, which information the executive director may
require to be marked on an aerial photograph or map furnished by the commission;

(7) the approximate surface area, to the nearest acre, of the reservoir when it is
full and the average depth in feet when it is full; and

(8) the approximate number of square miles in the drainage area above the dam
or reservoir.

(c) If the permit is sought for irrigation, the application must also specify:

{1) the total number of irrigable acres in the area;

(2) the number of acres to be irrigated within the area in any one year; and

(3) the approximate distance and direction of the land to be irrigated from the
midpoint of the dam or reservoir.

{(d) Except as otherwise specifically provided by this subsection, before the commission
may approve the application and issue the permit, it shall give notice and hold a hearing as
prescribed by this section. The commission may act on the application without holding a public
hearing if:
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(1) not less than 30 days before the date of action on the application by the
commission, the applicant has published the commission's notice of the application at least once
in a newspaper regularly published or circulated within the section of the state where the source
of water is located;

(2) not less than 30 days before the date of action on the application by the
commission, the commission mails a copy of the notice by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to
each person whose claim or appropriation has been filed with the commission and whose
diversion point is downstream from that described in the application; and

(3) within 30 days after the date of the newspaper publication of the commission's
notice, a public hearing is not requested in writing by a commissioner, the executive director, or
an affected person who objects to the application.

(e} Inthe notice, the commission shall:

(1) state the name and post-office address of the applicant;

(2) state the date the application was filed;

(3) state the purpose and extent of the proposed appropriation of water;

(4) identify the source of supply, including any proposed alternative source or

sources of water, other than state water, and the place where the water is stored; and

(5) specify the time and place of the hearing.
(f) The notice shall be published only once, at least 20 days before the date stated in the
notice for the hearing on the application, in a newspaper having general circulation in the county
where the dam or reservoir is located. If groundwater from a well or wells located within a

groundwater conservation district is proposed fo be utilized as an alternative source of water in

the application, notice shall also be provided to the groundwater conservation district and
published at least 20 days before the date stated in the notice for the hearing on the application

in the county or counties where the groundwater conservation district is located. Atleast 15 days

before the date set for the hearing, the commission shall transmit a copy of the notice by first-
class mail to each person whose claim or appropriation has been filed with the commission and
whose diversion point is downstream from that described in the application.

(g) If on the date specified in the notice prescribed by Subsection (d) of this section, the
commission determines that a public hearing must be held, the matter shall be remanded for
hearing without the necessity of issuing further notice other than advising all parties of the time
and place where the hearing is to convene.

(h} The applicant shall pay the filing fee prescribed by Section 5.701(c) at the time he files
the application.
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(i) The commission shall approve the application and issue the permit as applied for in
whole or part if it determines that:
(1} there is unappropriated water in the source of supply;
(2) the applicant has met the requirements of this section;
(3) the water is to be used for a beneficial purpose;
(4) the proposed use is not detrimental to the public welfare or to the welfare of
the locality; and

(5) the proposed use will not impair existing water rights.
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10. Modeled Sustainable
Definition
(32) "Modeled sustainable groundwater pumping™ is the maximum amount of groundwater that

the executive administrator determines may be produced from an aquifer on an annual basis in
perpetuity using the best available science.”

Sec. 36.001. DEFINITIONS

Sec. 36.108. JOINT PLANNING IN MANAGEMENT AREA

(d)} Not later than September 1, 2010, and every five years thereafter, the districts shall consider
groundwater availability models and other data or information for the management area and shall
propose for adoption desired future conditions for the relevant aquifers within the management
area. Before voting on the proposed desired future conditions of the aquifers under Subsection
(d-2), the districts shall consider:

(1) aquifer uses or conditions within the management area, including conditions that differ
substantially from one geographic area to another;

(2) the water supply needs and water management strategies included in the state water plan;
(3) hydrological conditions, including for each aquifer in the management area the total
estimated recoverable storage and modeled sustainable groundwater pumping as provided by the

executive administrator, and the average annual recharge, inflows, and discharge;

(4) other environmental impacts, including impacts on spring flow and other interactions
between groundwater and surface water;

(5) the impact on subsidence;

(6) socioeconomic impacts reasonably expected to occur;

(7) the impact on the interests and rights in private property, including ownership and the rights
of management area landowners and their lessees and assigns in groundwater as recognized
under Section 36.002;

(8) the feasibility of achieving the desired future condition; and

(9) any other information relevant to the specific desired future conditions.
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Item 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

f. Discussion and possible action related to the City of
Dripping Springs TPDES permit application to authorize
direct discharge of treated wastewater to Onion Creek in the
contributing zone of the Barton Springs segment of the
Edwards Aquifer.
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Item 5

Board Discussions and Possible Actions

g. Discussion and possible action related to the annual
election of the officers of the BSEACD Board of Directors.
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Item 6

Director’s Reports

Directors’ Reports. (Note: Directors’ comments under this item
cannot address an agenda item posted elsewhere on this agenda
and no substantive discussion among the Board Members or action
will be allowed in this meeting. Communications reported under
this item may be used to support Performance Standard 4-1 of the
District’'s Management Plan related to demonstration of effective
communication with District constituents.)

Directors may report on their involvement in activities and
dialogue that are of likely interest to the Board, in one or more of
the following topical areas:

e Meetings and conferences attended or that will be attended;

e Conversations with public officials, permittees, stakeholders,
and other constituents;

e Commendations; and

e Issues or problems of concern.
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Item 7

Adjournment
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